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WHO ARE WE?
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Surf  L i fe Saving Sunshine Cost is  the

region's  peak beach safety and rescue

authority and has a proud tradit ion of

saving l ives for  over 100 years.

Since 1907, surf  l i fesavers have

volunteered their  t ime and effort  both on

and off  the beach to provide a f i rst-class

l i fesaving service.  

Our clubs and our members are the heart

and soul  of  our organisat ion and are

integral  to our continued success.  

Our movement is  a part  of  the history,

fabr ic and future of  this  country.  I t

represents the l i festyle,  values and

bel iefs of  the Austral ian culture.  I t

protects l i fe,  i t  saves l i fe,  and i t

promotes l i fe.  

The Sunshine Coast Branch of  Surf  L i fe

Saving Queensland is  the largest Branch

in Queensland,  consist ing of  now 15 Surf

Life Saving Clubs and was establ ished in

1930.

OUR VISION
Zero preventable deaths in

Sunshine Coast Branch

patrol led waters.

OUR MISSION
Sunshine Coast Branch wi l l

operate as a proactive and

effect ive peak body leading

the way in l i fesaving service

provis ion,  education,  sport ,

beach and water safety

advocacy and community

leadership.  



PREVENTATIVE
ACTIONS

26,468
RESCUES

328

VOLUNTEER
PATROL
HOURS 

168,560

FIRST AID
TREATMENTS 

5057

TOTAL ACTIVE
MEMBERS

TOTAL JUNIOR
MEMBERS

3359 4576

 SEASON
SNAPSHOT  
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 SEASON
SNAPSHOT  
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BEACH ATTENDANCE

Sunshine Coast Patrol Statistics

Swimmers Between Flags

Swimmers Outside the Flags 

Craft Users  

On Beach 

332,711

145,686

94,145

915,278

TOTAL BEACH VISITATIONS 14,878,820

RESCUES

No Gear

Rescue Tube

Rescue Board 

IRB 

Other 

Preventative Actions 

11

114

101

84

5

26,468

FIRST AID

Minor Cuts

Minor First Aid

Marine Stings  

2,370

4,687

2,317



STATISTICS
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Membership Categories

Probationary 
Junior Activity Members (5-13 years)
Cadet Member (13-15 years)
Active Junior (15-18 years)
Active Senior (18 years & over)
Award Member 
Reserve Active  
Long Service
Past Active
Associate 
Life Member 
General 
Honorary 
Non Member Participants 
Leave/Restricted
Total Active

TOTAL

116
76
421
532
2070
306
30
707
142
3959
395
511
51
10
83
3359

13909

Award Name

Age Manager Course
Assessor Bronze Medallion
Training Officer Bronze Medallion
Bronze Medallion
IRB Crew Certificate 
Observers Award
QLD 4WD Induction
QLD Tractor Induction 
Radio Operator Certificate 
Silver Medallion - Patrol Captains
Silver Medallion - IRB Driver
Surf Rescue Certificate - CPR Endorsed
SSV Operator Induction 
Surf Play One - U6 
Surf Play Two - U7
Surf Aware One - U8
Surf Aware Two - U9 
Surf Safe One - U10 
Surf Safe Two - U11
Surf Smart One - U12 
Surf Smart Two - U13

TOTAL  

62
7
8
442
148
84
95
83
14
61
69
360
157
356
530
584
551
522
469
384
350

5336



*DENOTES DECEASED LIFE MEMBERS

OUR VALUED LIFE
MEMBERS 

RM BARTLETT AM

PJ BERIGAN OAM* 

JJ BETTS* 

P BOLT 

DJ BOULTON OAM 

RH BRINKLEY* 

L BUHK OAM 

BA CAMPBELL AM* 

R CAMPBELL 

A CASEY* 

J CLARKE* 

R CAVE 

M COYLE 

GR DAKIN 

WJ DALEY* 

R DAVIDSON OAM* 

B DAY 

JB DEARLOVE MBE* 

SA DELLA BIANCA 

SR DELLA BIANCA 

R DEVLIN AM KC 

T DUNCAN 

D DWYER OAM* 

M DWYER 

B GOULDING 

I  GRANT OAM 

L GRICE OAM

S HANDY

N HARGRAVE*

BS HAYTER 

P HIGGINS 

S HILLIER* 

M HOOGWAERTS 

A INWOOD 

C INWOOD* 

P JAKEMAN* 

T KEEGAN* 

AB KELK 

N KELK OAM 

J KLEMM* 

P KELLY 

C KUHN* 

J KUSKOPF* 

R LANE 

C LAW 

P LUCAS* 

JG MCCARTHY* 

W MCCLINTOCK* 

D MCLEAN ESM 

I  MALTMAN 

D MATHISON 

GFR NICKLIN* 

KL OC’ONNELL* 

N OLANDER 

AB PARKYN* 

LG PETERSEN* 

K PHILLIPS 

L PURCHASE 

R RANKIN AM 

D SMALLCOMBE 

S SMITH 

JR SPENDER* 

L STONE 

S SWAN 

D SWANSON 

R TALLON OAM* 

G TANNER OAM

MR TAYLOR* 

P THOMAS 

R THOMAS 

J THORPE 

G TOPFER 

M TRUSKETT 

W TWIGGER 

J WATTS 

R WEWER 

BF WILKES* 

E WILLIAMSON* 

PA WILLIAMS* 

B WEATHERALL 

TC YOUNG* 

R ZILLMAN*
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Tim Ryan OAM
President

BRANCH DIRECTORS

Ian Norman 
Deputy President

John Lowe
Director of
Lifesaving

Peter Kerridge
Director of

Finance

John Thorpe
Life Member on the

Executive

Kirsten Phil l ips
Director of  Youth

& Membership

Craig Law
Director of  Surf

Sports
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DEPUTY DIRECTORS

Rob Campbell
Deputy Director of

Membership 
Services -  Junior

Activit ies

Eliza Dreves
Deputy Director of

Membership 
Services -  Youth

David Scull ion
Deputy Director of  

L i fesaving

Shane Linton
Deputy Director of  

Surf  Sports
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Rainbow Beach Surf  Life Saving Club
Shane Handy

Noosa Heads Surf  Life Saving Club
Ross Fisher

Sunshine Beach Surf  Life Saving Club
John Gooderham

Peregian Beach Surf  Life Saving Club
John Roderick

Coolum Beach Surf  Life Saving Club
Ernie Burrows 

Marcoola Surf  Life Saving Club
Peter Hourn

Mudjimba Surf  Life Saving Club
Phi l l  Daniels

Maroochydore Surf  Life Saving Club
Robert  Elford

Alexandra Headland Surf  Life Saving Club
Sam Archer

Mooloolaba Surf  Life Saving Club
Matthew Horder

Kawana Waters Surf  Life Saving Club
Shane Gale

Dicky Beach Surf  Life Saving Club
Peter Aitken

Metropolitan Caloundra Surf  Life Saving Club
Brett  Magnussen

Bribie Island Surf  Life Saving Club
Jeff  Butler

Redcliffe Peninsula Surf  Life Saving Club
Kyl ie Robins

CLUB PRESIDENTS 
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BRANCH OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES  

Branch Education Officer 
Dana Craven

District  Supervisors 
David Scul l ion

Doug Gould
Damian Swan

Branch Lifesaving Officer 
Harry Crosthwaite -  IRB Off icer

Branch Judiciary Committee
Ralph Devl in AM KC
Santo Del la Bianca

David Swanson
Douglas Bolton OAM

Ross Bart lett  AM
Tanya Duncan

Branch Legal  Officer
Ralph Delvin AM KC  

Branch Life Member Panel
Santo Del la Bianca

David Swanson
Douglas Bolton OAM

Ross Bart lett  AM
Tanya Duncan
Michael  Dwyer

Branch Team Manager
Craig Law

Branch Team Manageress 
Cinnamon O’Shanesy 

Natal ie Jarrot

Branch Team Coaches
Joel  Piper

Abbie Tolano
Summer Short

Todd Mc Swan 

Branch Selection Committee
Kane Pi lk ington

Craig Law
Paul ine Gleeson 

Cinnamon O’Shanesy 

Surf Sports Officers
David Cumner -  IRB Off icer

Peter Thomas -  Gear &
Equipment Off icer

Barry Leek -  Off ic ia l  L ia ison
Off icer
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SLSQ SUNSHINE COAST REGIONAL STAFF

Aaron Purchase - Regional Operations Manager

Jess Roberts - Membership Development Coordinator

Shane Urban - Lifesaving Services Coordinator

Laura Ioviero - Community Awareness Coordinator

John Roderick - Education & Training Supervisor

Karen-Anne Lyon - Education Development Coordinator

Eniko Kasza - Regional Administrator

Mackenzee Hoger - Regional Administrator

Merrill Shwab - Branch Administrator

Bronwyn Gilchrist- Branch Administration Assistant 

Val Colley - Branch Administration Assistant 

Karyn Cook- Branch Administration Assistant 

Until September 2023

SUNSHINE COAST BRANCH STAFF
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THANK YOU 
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 BRANCH PRESIDENT

AND DEPUTY PRESIDENT
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Branch President
Tim Ryan OAM

As we remark on another season between the 

‘Red & Yel low’,  I  would l ike to take this  opportunity to

 thank al l  15 clubs and their  13,909 members that proudly played part  in

the 2023/2024 season for  the Sunshine Coast Branch.

This season saw over one mil l ion vis i tors across our beauti ful  coast l ine.

From those vis i tat ions,  we had 328 rescues,  del ivered 5,057 f i rst  a id

treatments,  carr ied out 26,468 preventat ive act ions,  and saw our

dedicated patrol l ing members commit 168,560 volunteer hours in the

23/24 season.  This  accomplishment serves as a powerful  testament to

the effect iveness of  our l i fesaving efforts and the unwavering

commitment of  our volunteers.  I t  a lso highl ights the cr i t ical  role we play

in ensuring the safety of  beachgoers along the Sunshine Coast.  With

13,  909 members across our 15 clubs this  season,  i t  is  a  testament to the

hard work and dedicat ion of  our Clubs and their  committees.  

Peregian Beach Surf  L i fe Saving Club continued to grow with a

staggering 198 Junior Members – a 19% increase on the previous

season.  Maintaining their  strong relat ionships with the local  Community

has been integral  in their  growth and reinsert ion back into their  local

community.  

Alexandra Headland & Bribie Is land Surf  L i fe Saving Clubs celebrated a

histor ic mi lestone,  commemorat ing 100 years of  dedicated service to

our coastal  communit ies.  Their  century of  unwavering commitment to

beach safety,  community engagement,  and l i fesaving excel lence stands

as a source of  inspirat ion for  a l l  of  us.  
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The Awards of  Excel lence serves as a platform to recognise and

celebrate the outstanding contr ibut ions of  our club members and

aff i l iated organisat ions.  Their  dedicat ion to our mission and their

communit ies,  reinforces the sense of  pr ide and unity within our surf  l i fe-

saving community.  These accolades are a testament to the passion and

excel lence that permeates our organisat ion.  At the Awards we also

acknowledged the fantast ic support  and fundrais ing by Perform 360 to

support  our Branch.  This  year the team raised over $30,000 making i t

over $84,000 to date,  to support  our members!  

Mooloolaba,  Alexandra Headland and Maroochydore Surf  L i fe Saving

Club successful ly hosted the Austral ian Lifesaving Championships,  an

event character ized by exceptional  organisat ion and the stunning

natural  beauty of  our coastal  environment.  The posit ive feedback

received from part ic ipants and spectators a l ike underl ines the success

of this  event and ref lects the high standards we maintain in host ing

competit ions.  

We saw a big push in the part ic ipat ion of  our members in a l l  our Branch

development programs; PULSE Junior,  Camp Commando, PULSE –

Advanced Lifesaving Program and Youth Bal l .  Under the incredible

leadership and guidance of  our Branch Director of  Youth & Membership,

Kirsten Phi l l ips,  El iza Dreves and her team of Coordinators have seen

maxed out programs at  every step.  Over 50 at  PULSE Junior,  175 at

Camp Commando, ful l  suit  of  26 part ic ipants at  PULSE and over 260

Youth members at  Youth Bal l  with 300 members total  celebrat ing the

end of their  season.  I  would l ike to also take this  opportunity to thank

our SLSQ Membership Development Coordinator Jess Roberts for  her

support  this  season.  
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The 2023/2024 season has seen some major change for  our Branch as

we entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Surf  L i fe

Saving Queensland (SLSQ),  for  the del ivery of  administrat ion services

and broader support  of  the Branch.  This  MOU aims to provide increase

consistency in administrat ion across the state,  increase col laborat ion

between the Branch and the SLSQ, and provide access for  staff  to

SLSQ’s employment resources.  I ’d l ike to acknowledge Merr i l l  Shwab,

Bronwyn Gi lchr ist ,  Val  Col ley,  and Karyn Cook for  their  service and

support  to the Branch and wish them al l  the best in their  future

endeavours.  As with any transit ion,  there were some chal lenges

however,  I  would l ike to acknowledge the SLSQ Regional  team led by

Aaron Purchase,  for  their  commitment to support ing our Executive and

Club’s throughout the season.  We’ve made posit ive str ides during this

process,  and I  am confident our future is  br ight.  

I t  has been a remarkable year for  the Sunshine Coast Clubs and Branch.

As we ref lect on these achievements,  we extend our deepest grat i tude

to our members,  partners,  and the community for  their  unwavering

support .  The season has showcased the strength and resi l ience of  our

organizat ion,  and we look forward to another year of  excel lence and

dedicat ion to our vita l  mission of  saving l ives and foster ing bonds within

our coastal  communit ies.  

Yours in Li fesaving,

Tim Ryan OAM

President 

Sunshine Coast Branch
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This has been my f i rst  season as part  of  the Branch 

Executive after  a long st int  at  the club management 

committee level  (eight years as Treasurer and four years as President) .

Thanks to Tim and the Branch team for making me feel  welcomed with

their  advice and guidance.  

My focus for  this  season has been on being behind the scenes support

mostly in the governance area.  A revis ion to the Branch Const itut ion

was progressed which provided more clar i ty around the requirements

and process for  Branch Life Membership.  This  change was discussed

with Branch Counci l  and formal ly approved in March.  We are current ly

progressing formal  Off ice of  Fair  Trading approval  to the revised

section before i t  comes into ful l  effect.  In addit ion a broader review of

the Branch Const itut ion is  wel l  progressed.  This  review wi l l  see Branch

move to adopt the SLSQ Branch Const itut ion template subject to any

changes required to ref lect the Sunshine Coast Branch’s specif ic

needs.  A working draft  of  the revised Const itut ion has been developed

and wi l l  be considered by the Branch Executive ear ly in season

2024/25 ahead of a formal  consultat ion process with Branch Counci l .

Further work has progressed on the Branch Strategic Plan fol lowing a

workshop held in ear ly 2023 which was faci l i tated by Kyl ie Robins.

Based on the outcomes of  this  workshop a revised version of  the

Branch Strategic Plan was developed which has been endorsed by the

Branch Executive.  For 2024 the strategic plan has been reviewed

based on feedback from the Club Presidents and Branch Executive and

an update of  progress against  the Branch’s strategic object ives has

been included in this  report .

Deputy President
Ian Norman
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Final ly in it ia l  work has started on a review of the Branch’s

communicat ion strategy.  At this  stage a review of current Branch

stakeholders,  communicat ions channels and communicat ions

object ives has been documented.  For season 2024/25 Branch wi l l

work with SLSQ communicat ions to agree on a cohesive

communicat ion strategy for  Branch that a l igns with SLSQ’s

communicat ion strategies.

As always thanks to the clubs for  your support  and part ic ipat ion.

Look forward working with you next season.

Ian Norman

Deputy President 

Sunshine Coast Branch
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Surf Lifesaving
 Sunshine Coast

STRATEGIC PLAN 
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Director of  Lifesaving 

John Lowe
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John Lowe
I  acknowledge the outstanding efforts and 

unwavering dedicat ion demonstrated by our 15 clubs

spanning from Rainbow Beach to Redcl i f fe Peninsula

throughout the volunteer season.  The commitment and passion exhibited

by the members of  these clubs have not only upheld but elevated the

values and virtues of  our movement,  ensuring the safety and wel l-being

of beachgoers a long the Sunshine Coast.

The col lect ive efforts  of  our clubs have resulted in countless

preventat ive act ions and rescues,  exempli fying the self lessness and

generosity inherent in the spir i t  of  Surf  L i fesaving.  This  year,  patrol l ing

members of  15 Clubs performed 1,112 rescues and conducted 10,378

first-aid act iv it ies.  Unfortunately,  this  season saw four drownings on

Sunshine Coast Beaches.  Further,  we saw 29 external  13SURF request ing

urgent assistance from the Pol ice and Ambulance,  to which our

volunteers responded. The t i reless commitment to patrol l ing our

beaches,  educating the publ ic on water safety,  and responding swift ly

and effect ively in t imes of  need have undoubtedly saved l ives and

prevented countless accidents.

Our Branch continues to be at  the forefront of  innovation.  Eleven clubs

have been approved to operate rescue watercraft  (RWC) on patrols  in

conjunction with their  IRBs,  the most of  any Branch in the State of

Queensland.  I  want to extend a special  acknowledgment to the Club

Captains of  Rainbow, Noosa,  Sunshine,  Peregian,  Coolum, Marcoola,

Mudj imba,  Maroochydore,  Alex,  Mooloolaba,  Kawana,  Dicky,  Met Cal ,

Br ibie,  and Redcl i f fe.  Your leadership,  guidance,  and unwavering

dedicat ion have been instrumental  in ensuring your respective clubs'

success and continued excel lence.  Your self less giving of  t ime and

passion has not gone unnoticed and is  deeply appreciated by al l .
22



Sincerest  thanks to Doug Gould and Damian Swan and a part icular

thank you to David Scul l ion,  Deputy Director of  L i fesaving and Distr ict

Supervisor,  for  spending countless hours conducting patrol

inspections from Rainbow to Redcl i f fe.  Thank you to our Patrol

Captains for  accommodating them during the inspections.

A big thank you to Dana Craven,  who took on the role of  Education

Adviser and Branch Representat ive on the State Education Panel .

Dana’s enthusiasm, common-sense approach,  and understanding of

the chal lenges of  club CTOs ensure that our Branch is  leading the way

in education.  Thank you to the staff ,  especial ly the Lifesaving

Coordinator Shane Urban,  for  their  support  dur ing the last  year.

As we ref lect on the achievements of  the volunteer season,  let  us not

only celebrate the l ives saved and the accidents prevented but a lso

recognise the strong sense of  community and camaraderie fostered by

every member of  our Surf  L i fesaving clubs.  We continue to make a

posit ive impact on our local  communit ies through our col lect ive

efforts and shared commitment to the safety and wel l-being of  others.

Once again,  thank you to al l  the clubs and their  members for  their

outstanding contr ibut ions and dedicat ion.  Your commitment to the

values and virtues of  Surf  L i fesaving inspires us al l .

Yours in Li fesaving

John Lowe
Director of  L i fesaving
Sunshine Coast Branch 
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Director of  Surf  Sports 

Craig Law
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Craig Law
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With season 2023/24 now complete,  i t ’s  t ime

to both ref lect and appreciate the achievements of  

the past  year,  which was yet another great one for  our

clubs.

Whether i t ’s  as an athlete,  a team manager,  a coach,  an off ic ia l  or

committee member,  each of  our clubs should be applauded for their

efforts in the Surf  Sports space with some of the most dedicated

and amazing volunteers on show with their  desire to ensure that the

Sunshine Coast is  not only the largest,  but the best Branch in Qld.  

Given this  is  my f inal  report  in a br ief  but very pivotal  couple of

years in the DOSS role,  I  feel  incredible proud of a l l  that is  Surf

Sports on the Sunshine Coast.  From our U8s-10s al l  the way through

to our Masters competitors there real ly is  something for  everyone.  I

have thoroughly enjoyed the role and as I  move on to new

endeavours,  I  look forward to seeing you al l  on the beach next

season!  

I  want to extend a huge thank you to a number of  mainstays of  a

surf  sports community who have once again assisted me great ly.  To

Santo Del la Bianca,  Denis Mathison,  Shane Linton,  Dave Cumner,

Peter Thomas,  Shar leen Swan and Barry Leek or is  i t  Larry Beek,  my

heartfelt  appreciat ion for  your outstanding contr ibut ions to our

Branch for decades,  and to me personal ly,  and your ongoing

counsel  and commitment was immense.  



The insane amount of  hours you have al l  put into Off ic ia ls  upgrades

and accreditat ions this  season has been game changing.  To al l  of

you,  your support  of  myself ,  and the commitment to your roles was

second to none.  Only a few of us can truly understand the amount of

hard work that goes on behind the scenes to ensure the smooth

running of  a Branch Surf  Sports program, and I  have no hesitat ion in

saying that each of  you dedicated countless hours to guarantee yet

another successful  season for  our Branch.  

This  season saw signif icant change in our Branch support  with a

staff ing restructure which had s ignif icant impl icat ions for  the Surf

Sports sect ion,  but fortunately through the amazing work of  Jess

Roberts,  we powered through and continued to del iver the program.

Jess’s  work during this  per iod was instrumental  in ensuring our

service del ivery and I  am forever indebted to her for  her work in this

space.

Thank you also to our Executive Directors,  President Tim Ryan,

Deputy President Ian Norman, Finance – Peter Kerr idge,  L i fesaving –

John Lowe and Youth & Development Kirsten Phi l l ips.  I  appreciate

your pat ience and support  this  season.  There has been some major

change this  season and I  am proud of the season we have had and

the posit ive momentum that has come around as wel l .   

To the Surf  Clubs that volunteered to host our carnivals  I

congratulate them and their  carnival  committees for  the eff ic ient

way they went about with the preparat ion of  their  beaches and

especial ly to the workforce that worked t i relessly ensuring the

success of  our carnivals .  No task was ever too big,  and the

chal lenges were dealt  with in an eff ic ient and posit ive manner.  A

great team effort . 26



As many of you know, I  have nothing but admirat ion for  our many

Off icia ls ,  in part icular  our longest serving senior off ic ia ls ,  whose

support  and passion for  our Carnivals  is  unparal le led.  Although at

t imes the numbers were smal l ,  under the guidance of  the Carnival

Referees and the professional ism of the off ic ia ls ,  a l l  carnivals  were

conducted successful ly.  Congratulat ions to al l  our off ic ia ls  who

attained higher honours in being chosen to represent our Branch

at the Junior and Senior State Tit les and the National

Championships (Aussies)  this  season.  

A massive thank you to Maroochydore,  Alexandra Headland &

Mooloolaba Surf  L i fesaving Clubs for  their  efforts during Austral ian

Tit les.  Aussies was an incredible success and a credit  to the

standard of  Surf  Sports we have on the Coast.  

This  past  season has been yet another one of  unprecedented

success across al l  facets including Surf ,  Beach,  Pool ,  Surf  Rescue,

IRB and Surf  Boats,  which has seen a number of  our athletes

achieve outstanding levels  of  accomplishment and personal

achievements.  From the el i te Nutr i  Grain Ser ies to the Aussies,

along with numerous numbers of  State and Austral ian

representat ives.  Our clubs certainly have much to be proud of

when it  comes to reviewing their  past  season.  Goodluck to al l  our

athletes heading to the upcoming World Championships!

Once again,  our Sunshine Coast Inter  Branch Team was victor ious

for an unprecedented f i f teenth t ime in the last  s ixteen years of  this

Qld Championships event.  A breeding ground for future Surf

Sports stars,  National  and World Champions across mult iple

discipl ines and sports,  our crew continues to excel  year after  year.
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 Of great s ignif icance is  the fact that our Branch Team has

produced some seven Olympians who are about to head to Par is

which is  s imply amazing.  To Lani  Pal l ister ,  Alyssa Bul l ,  Sam Short ,

Nick Sloman, Jamie Perkins,  Chelsea Gubecka and Al ly Clarke

good luck and go and own your moment,  we are immensely proud

of you al l .

I  wish to congratulate al l  those members who were nominated for

our Branch Excel lence Awards,  and ult imately those who received

these awards.  Each was a worthy winner and wi l l  be a qual i ty

representat ive of  our Branch at  the upcoming State Excel lence

Awards.

As volunteers we al l  dedicate countless hours to the proudest

volunteer movement in this  great country of  ours.  In doing so,  we

often forsake that valuable family t ime with our loved ones,  who

continual ly support  our passion for  l i fesaving.  To my very

understanding and amazing wife Angela,  a long with our family,

thank you once again for  affording me the many hours needed to

fulf i l  the mult iple Branch and State roles,  I ’ve undertaken this  past

season.  

And f inal ly,  to al l  of  our members and your very support ive

famil ies,  thank you from the bottom of my heart  once again for

your commitment and dedicat ion to our program. I t  is  only

through your efforts that we continue to punch wel l  above our

weight in a l l  areas of  L i fesaving and Surf  Sports,  which truly makes

us the envy of  so many other Branches throughout Queensland.  

UNITY IS STRENGTH! 

LawZee
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Director of  Youth &
Membership Development

 Kirsten Phil l ips
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Total  membership for  the branch has remained 

strong with 13,909 members at  the end of the season 

a 2% increase on the previous season.  However,  our 

act ive membership has decl ined by four percent compared to the

previous season with a total  of  3,359 act ive members across the branch

– increasing our act ive membership is  something we need to remain

focussed on.  Our junior act iv it ies numbers saw a 5% increase compared

to the previous season with a total  of  4,576.  Across the Branch we also

need to focus on our approach to retention with an overal l  retention

rate of  69% - the state benchmark is  75%. In good news though our

act ive membership retention is  81%!

Part ic ipat ion in our youth and membership development act iv it ies

remained strong this  year.  The increase in junior membership is  a

testament to our junior act iv it ies programs across the Branch

continuing to be del ivered to a very high standard.  I t  is  great to see so

many programs offer ing diverse opportunit ies,  especial ly in the

inclusion space.  Thanks to my Deputy Director for  Junior Activit ies -

Rob Campbel l  for  his  leadership across the Branch this  season and for

his  support  in guiding clubs in relat ion to developing their  programs.

Our youth development portfol io has been led by El iza Dreves again

this  season – thank you El iza for  your dedicat ion and hard work.  Youth

Development Off icers across the branch have continued to br ing a high

level  of  enthusiasm and wi l l ingness to grow the youth membership base

across the coast.  The Pulse Jnr Program was wel l  attended again this

season with our 13–17 year old SRC and BM holders again ref ining their

front l ine l i fesaving ski l ls  to put into pract ice on patrol .  

 

Kirsten Phil l ips
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From scenarios to a resus masterclass this  program is  exceptional

in upski l l ing these young l i fesavers – wel l  done to the coordinat ion

team.

Our PULSE program for 18+ was also held again this  season with

part ic ipants from across the Sunshine Coast but a lso some guest

part ic ipants who are to run the program in their  own branches –

great to see Sunshine Coast leading the way and encouraging this

approach.  This  program continues to develop our front l ine

l i fesavers to ensure they are confident in managing emergency

responses on patrol .  Wel l  done to the coordinat ion team and al l

the contr ibutors to the program this  season!

Camp Commando was again a huge success with over 130

part ic ipants and 30+ leaders and coordinators.  Highl ights included

a s l ime wars,  Bonnie Hancock presentat ion,  and Perform 360

chal lenges.  Al l  good fun and making memories for  the youth of  the

organisat ion.  There was also the introduction of  ‘mum squad’ this

year,  a  team of four mums who helped the coordinators behind the

scenes in looking after  part ic ipants who needed a l i t t le extra care.

Thanks so much to the coordinat ion team. 

 The season capped off  with our largest ever Youth Bal l  – this

event has become so popular  i t  was wait- l isted this  year as we

couldn’t  f i t  any more in the venue.  Youth Bal l  is  a  great way to top

off  the season and thanks to al l  involved in this  and al l  our youth

and membership development programs! I t  is  a lso great to see that

because of  these programs, the Sunshine Coast Branch continues

to put forward numerous part ic ipants and leaders for  state and

national  development programs – I  would encourage al l  members

wanting to develop their  leadership ski l ls  within surf  l i fesaving to

consider their  involvement in one of  these init iat ives. 31



 Over the past  12 months we have continued with our wonderful

relat ionship with Perform 360. The partnership with this

organisat ion has seen the members of  Perform 360 and the Maggs

family provide an incredible amount of  support  to Surf  L i fe Saving

on the Sunshine Coast.  To date Perform 360 have raised more than

$84,000 for Sunshine Coast Surf  L i fe Saving – this  is  just

incredible! ! !  This  funding has gone direct ly into gear,  equipment

and development programs to upl i f t  the capabi l i ty of  our front l ine

members to better  protect our beaches.  However,  the relat ionship

goes beyond the funding support  with the team integrat ing into a

number of  our programs with health and wel l-being act iv it ies.  I t

was also with great pleasure that we again awarded this  year’s

Lifesaver’s  L i fesaver and Leader’s  Leader awards at  Camp

Commando in Cal lum’s memory.  The funding this  team has raised

has had such an incredible impact – I  say i t  every year but I  can’t

stress enough that the crew at Perform 360 truly embody our

l i fesaving values of  mateship,  teamwork and giving back.

In these volunteer roles,  i t  is  cr i t ical  that we work in partnership

with our Branch and SLSQ staff  team members – thank you to al l  of

you for  your support  and assistance.  But I  have to give a huge

shout out to Jess Roberts – i t  has been an absolute pleasure

working with you this  past  season Jess – your support  has been

exceptional  and you always br ing a smile to our faces in how you

approach your work.  Thanks also to President Tim Ryan and my

fel low Directors for  your support  – I  think we can al l  be proud of

what we have achieved together this  season!
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While we often focus on the development programs and events

that happen during the season,  the true strength of  the Branch

is in how we support  our clubs – the connections we have with

the clubs are invaluable and we need to continue to foster

relat ionships,  share successful  pract ices and work together for

better  outcomes for  our volunteers.

Kirsten Phil l ips

Director of  Youth and Membership Development 

Surf  L i fe Saving Sunshine Coast 
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MEMBER

RECOGNITION 
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Both Bi l l  Buhk and Fred Wilkes,  in whose name the trophy is  dedicated to,

placed great emphasis  on the standard of  our grass roots responsibi l i ty in a l l

aspects of  Surf  L i fesaving,  not just  for  a few months of  the season,  but for  the

entire patrol l ing period.  

The Buhk Wilkes Memorial  Trophy is  presented annual ly to the club that meets

the cr i ter ia and highest standard of  prof ic iency both on and off  the beach,  that

these men great ly respected and f i rmly upheld during their  t ime of service.  

BUHK WILKES

MEMORIAL TROPHY

Buhk Wilkes Surf  L i fe

Saving Club of  the

Year Results
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First Place  - Marcoola SLSC

Second Place  - Redcliffe SLSC

Third Place  
Alexandra Headland SLSC &

Sunshine Beach SLSC



BUHK WILKES

MEMORIAL TROPHY
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Junior Athlete of the Year 
Stanley Jarrott Maroochydore SLSC

Youth Athlete of the Year 
Dylan Wilson Sunshine Beach SLSC

Athlete of the Year 
Tiarnee Massie Maroochydore SLSC

Awards of Excellence 
Recipients

Member
Development Awards 

Surf Sports Excellence
Awards

U14 Lifesaver of the Year 
 Travis Lovell Kawana Waters SLSC

Paul Egan U15 Lifesaver of the Year  
Archer Bailey  Noosa Heads SLSC

U18 Lifesaver of the Year 
 Cameron Ray  Metropolitan

Caloundra SLSC
U21 Lifesaver of the Year 

Penelope Earl Mudjimba SLSC
Junior & Youth Development Club

of the Year 
Mooloolaba SLSC

Masters Athlete of the Year 
Rodney Taylor Mooloolaba SLSC

Sports Team of the Year 
Open Womens Taplin Team

Tayla Halliday
Emma Woods 
Lani Pallister 

Alexandra Headland SLSC
Official of the Year 

Barry Leek Noosa Heads SLSC
Volunteer Coach of the Year

Dave Oliphant Alexandra Headlands
SLSC

Professional Coach of the Year
 Jack Hansen Alexandra Headlands SLSC

Team Manager of the Year 
Craig Law Sunshine Beach SLSC

Handicap Champion Club of the Year 
Noosa Heads SLSC

Champion Club of the Year 
Alexandra Headland SLSC

Surf Sports Excellence
Awards
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Awards of Excellence 
Recipients
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Lifesaving Excellence Awards

Operations Support Person of the Year 
Lex Helibron Alexandra Headland SLSC

Trainer of the Year 
Guy Tanner Mudjimba SLSC

Assessor of the Year 
Dana Craven Alexandra Headland SLSC

Club Captain of the Year 
Damon Faint Peregian Beach SLSC

Surf Lifesaver of the Year  
Cherisse Breese Alexandra Headland SLSC

Volunteer of the Year 
Zoe Naylor Mudjimba SLSC

Club of the Year 
Alexandra Headland SLSC

Clive Hammond OAM Medal 
Kirsten Phillips Metropolitan Caloundra SLSC

Major Awards 



Club Presidents

Reports
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Shane Handy
This year,  we are proud to report  that there were 

no fatal i t ies between our f lags,  despite over 55,000 

vis i tors to our beach.  This  is  a remarkable achievement for  a club

with just  83 act ive l i fesavers.

Our club thr ives thanks to the unwavering support  of  our sponsors.

We extend our heartfelt  grat i tude to them for their  invaluable

contr ibut ions.  The Supporter ’s  Club has once again played a crucial

role,  providing s ignif icant funding to our Surf  L i fe Saving Club,

enabl ing us to continue our vita l  services.  We deeply appreciate the

efforts of  the Supporters Club,  General  Manager Raelene,  her staff ,

John,  and the committee.

We also received vita l  support  from Surf  L i fe Saving Austral ia ,  Surf

Life Saving Queensland,  the Queensland Government,  and the

Queensland Fire and Emergency Services.  Their  major funding,  a long

with the assistance of  our many individual  supporters,  is  invaluable.

The dedicat ion of  our act ive members is  great ly appreciated by

myself ,  the club,  and the committee.  

A special  shout out goes to our number one patrol  team for achieving

a perfect score of  100% in their  Buhk Wilkes inspection—an

incredible accomplishment.  The dedicat ion and countless hours on

patrol  of  a l l  our teams ensure publ ic safety and ref lect the core

mission of  our club.  Be proud of your efforts,  I  certainly am.

Many thanks to Just in Schooth,  our Chief  Training Off icer,  for  his

t i reless work in upski l l ing our members,  tra ining new l i fesavers,  and

faci l i tat ing emergency care awards throughout the season.  His

energy and enthusiasm for this  integral  role is  s imply next level .
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And a big thanks to our Club Captain,  Mitch King,  for  his

leadership in organis ing patrol  teams and covering gaps when

needed. His efforts a lso led to nine members complet ing the Jet

Ski  course,  preparing us to ut i l ize the RWC in the coming season.

Cheers to Mitch for  another great year ahead.

I  a lso extend my grat i tude to our committee for  their  dedicat ion

and contr ibut ions.  Even during the off-season,  they are hard at

work preparing,  analysing,  planning,  and ensuring we are ready to

save l ives.

One area of  focus for  the coming season is  updating our

const itut ion to al ign with modern governance standards and

streamline our operat ions for  the future.

In conclusion,  our club's  success is  due to the col lect ive efforts of

al l  our members.  I  am truly grateful  for  your teamwork and

dedicat ion.  

See you al l  on the beach next season.

Shane Handy
President -  Rainbow Beach SLSC
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Ross Fisher
In i ts  96th year of  surf  l i fesaving by the Noosa Heads 

SLSC, the proud record of  no l ives lost  between the f lags at  

Noosa Main Beach remained intact and I  congratulate the members

who contr ibuted to ensure this  cr i t ical  and outstanding record

remained.  This  wonderful  result  and achievement for  our core

business of  l i fesaving,  commends our PC’s and patrol l ing members

who contr ibute to the Clubs 15 patrol  teams.    

Club Captain Roger Aspinal l  again praised their  efforts  on many

occasions and ref lected on the wonderful  tra ining provided by al l

our tra iners across al l  areas of  ski l ls  and awards under CTO Paul

Jenkinson.  Roger also enjoyed a very successful  year and was wel l

supported by his  L i fesaving Committee.  He held very successful  PC

and VPC meetings,  including a new Leadership Course init iat ive that

were wel l  attended.  

On behalf  of  the Board,  I  a lso acknowledge and offer  my

congratulat ions to al l  famil ies and fr iends for  support ing our

patrol l ing members and al lowing them to carry out their  v ita l ly

important l i fesaving duties throughout the year.  A number of  our

l i fesavers go above their  patrol l ing commitments and also volunteer

for SLSQ Wave runner duties as wel l  as some form part  of  the Club’s

Emergency Response Group [ERG] who are avai lable 24/7 to be

cal led out for  var ious emergencies that are control led by the Pol ice.
 
JAC enjoyed another excel lent year with Director Shaun Baker and

his committee running another terr i f ic  program with some 650

Nipper members s igned up.  He was strongly supported by his

committee who worked very wel l  and was supported by JAC

administrat ion assistant,  Sheridan.  
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 As part  of  the strategic plan,  this  year,  the Surf  Sports and JAC

Coaching has been reviewed to provide better  integrat ion and

coaching programs from Nippers through to Masters.  This  plan wi l l

be important to set  the path for  our athletes of  the future.  

The Seahorse Nipper program is  a lso run under the JAC umbrel la

and this  year,  another two four-week programs, plus a Xmas special ,

was able to be del ivered successful ly,  after  a continued process of

administrat ion reviewing new requirements.  

After  the annual  select ion process to choose the Nipper Captains,  I

was invited to announce the new Captains and Vice Captains for

2023/24 and one of  their  f i rst  dut ies was to march with me and lay a

wreath on Anzac Day and what a fantast ic job they did representing

the Club and I  s incerely thank them. 

To present two deserving and valuable patrol l ing members with a

Presidents Medal  was another highl ight for  myself  this  year as they

highl ighted some of our outstanding members.  The f i rst  was to Jo

Power for  her outstanding contr ibut ion over many years to both the

Seahorse Nipper Program along with fundrais ing work for  the Club

and the Community.  The second Presidents Medal  was to Joey

Glassock for  his  outstanding efforts to the Club during the year.

These included support ing the Club Captain when required,

Waverunner and Club Jetski  operator and being a leader at  Youth

Camps.  He also achieved 111  hours of  patrol l ing and support  dur ing

the year.

Surf  Education has continued to grow, and the program run by

Sacha Tapara-Beatson,  now includes 31 schools Toowoomba to

Gympie and in excess of  2500 students.  This  program forms part  of

the Clubs commitment to the community and hopeful ly ent ices

many attendees to join a surf  c lub and patrol  a  beach in either

Noosa or another community.  Many of  the trainers have been

assist ing Surf  Education for  some years and provide the valuable

support  to this  excel lent program.
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 In addit ion,  a program to educate local  swimming groups was

implemented and two sessions were held during the year where

information and advice on CPR, spinal  in jur ies,  1st  a id and surf

condit ions was relayed, fol lowed by morning tea.  Counci l  L i feguards

also attended to pass on their  v iews and experiences.
 
As we move closer to 100 years in 2028, the new Training Centre

faci l i ty was completed in May thus providing the Club with an up to

date,  modern centre for  tra ining,  functions,  meetings,  and numerous

addit ional  act iv it ies that provides members with enormous benefits  for

future years.  The project was managed by Club General  Manager

Byron Mil ls  and the major ity bui lding works completed by our

Maintenance Manager Peter Gray.  A l i f t  is  instal led and access to the

property is  v ia an electr ic security gate.  I t  was off ic ia l ly  opened by

SLSA President John Baker AM ESM on the 21st  June this  year and was

joined by numerous local  VIP’s and al l  Emergency Services

representat ives.  

Planning for  the replacement of  the old sect ion of  the bui lding in t ime

for the Clubs 100th birthday in 2028 as endorsed by the members,  is

very wel l  advanced by the Bui lding Planning Working Group. A Project

Manager was contracted to carry out a comprehensive bui lding

di lapidat ion report  that included Fire,  Hydraul ics,  Electr ical ,  Waste

Management,  Engineering,  Geotech and Access.  When completed i t

was provided to an architect,  contracted to produce an architect’s

br ief  to cover a l l  the requirements identi f ied by the Club Committees

and the numerous reports.  This  proposed bui lding replacement wi l l

provide club members with both a level  on top for  their  use and some

20 addit ional  carparks under the bui lding.  As the Club continues to

grow, the administrat ion and the support  required for  a l l  areas

increases proport ional ly.  

General  Manager Byron Mil ls ,  and Club Administrator and Off ice

Manager Tanya Duncan,  continue to ensure that the off ice functions

smoothly and the Club operates at  a very high level  of  v ita l ly

important governance,  in accordance with the Strategic Plan,

Const itut ion and SLSQ. 44



I  thank the Board Members for  ensuring their  sect ions ran smoothly

and for their  support  provided to myself  once again this  year.  I  note

that four of  the Board members,  including Rob Harney,  Roger

Aspinal l ,  Barry Leek,  and Brett  Leckie,  have been on the Board along

with myself  for  eight years,  thus providing stabi l i ty,  consol idat ion,

continuity,  experience and knowledge, to ensure the continued

success of  the Club.  The Director of  Surf  Sports Alan Rogers tendered

his resignat ion after  three years and Director of  JA Shaun Baker,  wi l l

be stepping down after  a very successful  3 years heading a very large

JAC Program of 650 nippers.  

I  a lso acknowledge the support  received from our governing bodies

being both Surf  L i fe Saving Queensland and Sunshine Coast Branch.

Our relat ionship continues to be a very strong, stable and has been

one bui l t  over many years on trust  and communicat ion between us.

Noosa Shire Counci l  under Mayor Clare Stewart ,  continued to

communicate openly and supported any init iat ives we had at  both the

Club and Noosa Beach and subsequently,  worked construct ively to

assist  us,  and we thanked them for this  mutual ly beneficia l  co-

operat ion.  New Mayor Frank Wilk ie [March 2024] has committed to

continue Counci ls  support  to l i fesaving.  

Yours in Li fesaving

Ross Fisher 
Club President and Life Governor -  Noosa Heads SLSC
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John Gooderham
We are pleased to present the annual  report  for  Sunshine 

Beach Surf  L i fesaving Club for  the year 2023/2024 season.  This  report

encapsulates our achievements,  chal lenges,  and the dedicat ion of  our

members in fulf i l l ing our mission of  ensuring safety and promoting

beach culture in our community.

As the season drew to a close on the 6th of  May we were again able to

celebrate the commitment and ski l ls  of  our patrol l ing members who

have del ivered another successful  season with zero fatal i t ies between

the f lags.  Under the guidance of  Club Captain,  John Reeves,  and al l

the PC’s we continue to provide a safe environment for  locals  and

vis itors a l ike who come to enjoy our beach.  Again,  this  season our

patrol l ing members have excel led and performed some chal lenging

rescues.  Of note Pia & Zach Heffernan (U14 SRC) were involved in

separate,  but exceptional  ocean and cave rescues that required ski l l

and knowledge to avoid an unpleasant outcome. An amazing effort

from our younger members.

Our patrol l ing numbers have continued to grow with the support  of  our

CTO, George Springal l  and his  team of tra iners overseeing the bronze

medal l ion courses and John is  ant icipat ing the addit ion of  a new patrol

in the coming season which wi l l  help to di lute the patrol l ing load

across al l  members.

Thank you to everyone for  the many hours given to patrol ing the f lags

over the season.  This  team effort  spread across the twelve patrols

creat ing last ing fr iendships and providing valuable support  to the

wider community as we maintain a safe environment on the beach.  
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John has raised the bar in his  four years as Club Captain and sadly

steps down at  the end of this  season.  Always jumping in to support

a depleted patrol ,  John has demonstrated total  commitment to our

club and is  highly respected both around the club and at  Branch -

Thank you John for  everything,  we wi l l  miss your contr ibut ion to the

club and the Board.  

2024 marked the 30th anniversary for  Nippers at  the club which

was celebrated in February with many of  the or iginal  JAC

committee present.  Hi lary Harding who holds the honour of  the f i rst

JAC at the club was joined by many famil ies from the ear ly years as

we celebrated the event with speeches made by former JAC’s

covering al l  the years.

We learned how in the ear ly years our beach was deemed too

dangerous for  Nippers and how the club struggled to get approval

from Branch and SLSQ to al low the development of  the program.

Eventual ly in 1994 this  was achieved with 47 Nippers enrol led.  Over

the years the Nippers program has provided a pathway to feed our

club with younger members and their  parents enabl ing the

continued growth in our patrol l ing members to provide the support

to our core business between the f lags.  The board would l ike to

thank the current JAC chair ,  Nicole White & Tony Frost  for  their

help organis ing the wonderful  day.

This year our Nippers program exceeded 250 members and Nicole

and her committee are ant icipat ing continued growth moving

forwards.  With the expanding Nipper program, we are now seeing

some large age groups coming up through the age groups and

anticipate del iver ing 30 new SRC members into patrols  in 2024/25

which wi l l  soon become the norm.

Brigid Duncanson as Director of  Surf  Sports and supported by a

strong committee have overseen the continued development of  the

Surf  Sports program. 
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Wes and Jade Berg supported by Paul ine Gleeson -  beach coach,  have

bui l t  upon the achievements of  the 2023 season and del ivered another

fantast ic season across al l  ages.  This  year has seen the Surf  Sports

program expand with a large cohort  of  103 members which has doubled

over the last  two years.  

The Surf  Sports program has excel led not only at  regional  competit ions

but also at  the nat ional  level ,  with several  athletes across al l  ages

securing podium f inishes and earning recognit ion as top performers in

their  respective discipl ines.  I t  was a joy to see that the Masters made

sure their  presence in the club was felt  with some excel lent results  at

Aussies! !  

In the Nutr i-grain Ser ies,  we were represented by Electra Outram (4th

overal l )  and Gemma Welch-Smith (21st  overal l ) .  We congratulate them

on their  success in the Nutr i-grain Ser ies.  Their  presence at  the club and

at tra ining is  a huge st imulus for  the whole surf  sports cohort  who

respect and thr ive in the opportunity to tra in alongside some of the best

in the country.

The continued development of  the ski l ls  for  l i fe program for the U8-U10

age group wi l l  provide strength in numbers within the club as we move

forwards with parents encouraged to part ic ipate sett ing them on a

pathway to bronze medal l ion.  Congratulat ions to Wes,  Jade,  Paul ine,

and Sarah on a magnif icent surf  sports season.  Besides the amazing

results ,  i t  has been wonderful  hear ing the commentary at  carnivals

constant ly referr ing to the success of  Sunshine Beach.

Tara Lees leading the Youth & Cadets as Director,  has had another

fantast ic year with record numbers attending the Pulse Junior program,

Camp Commando, and the Youth Bal l .  This  ref lects Tara’s  energy and

commitment to motivate and retain our younger members.  We remain

focused on encouraging the development of  our youth members and wi l l

look for  new init iat ives as the larger age groups coming up through the

club begin to f low into this  cohort .
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As Tara steps away from the role this  year we thank her for  developing

the Youth and Cadet program over a three year per iod.

Both the Life Saving and Supporters Clubs establ ished sub committees

to oversee the revis ion of  their  respective Const itut ions over the last  12

months.  The t ime offered by al l  members who joined the sub committees

and from general  members who contr ibuted to the dialogue is  very much

appreciated by al l .

Through the continued relat ionship held with our sponsors we remain

truly grateful  for  the support  given to the club.  Again,  this  year,  our

three gold sponsors are the Norr is  Motor Group, Noosa Springs Golf

Resort  and Heads of  Noosa who are in good company with 31 addit ional

sponsors a l l  providing the much-needed support  to help us maintain our

presence on the beach.  We would also l ike to acknowledge the

exceptional ly generous support  again from the Norr is  Group who have

donated a new SSV vehicle for  use on the beach patrols  a long with a

new sports tra i ler .

The Supporter ’s  Club has had another successful  year guided by our

General  Manager,  Jul ie Strudwick,  and her support  team. Despite the

economic uncertaint ies presented through 2023, the trading

performance has been very strong with excel lent prof its  shown again.  As

a club we are now in a very strong posit ion because of  the excel lent

accounts del ivered s ince the opening of  the new bui lding in 2020,

which has enabled the club to pay down the bui lding loan in an amazing

four-year per iod.  This  is  a stunning outcome which is  highly

commendable,  and I  thank and congratulate al l  who have been involved

on this  journey.

Michel le Burnett  a long with Carmel Foot and Deb Court  as bookkeepers,

have provided extensive support  to the Board and the wider membership

over the last  year.  Their  knowledge and understanding are exceptional ,

and we are truly grateful  to have them at the club as part  of  the

Sunshine team. Thank you.
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Both the Life Saving Board and Supporters Board are made up of  a

strong and balanced team that offer  a mix of  l i fesaving and

professional  experience.  We are extremely appreciat ive of  the

commitment given by al l  Board members to attend a mult i tude of

meetings over the year that enable our club to continue to grow and

move forwards posit ively.  The col lect ive energy of  a l l  has helped to

provide a f inancial ly stable platform thanks to the prudent f inancial

management that has been fol lowed. We wi l l  continue to invest in

essentia l  resources,  equipment,  bui lding upgrades and maintenance to

enhance the capabi l i t ies of  our club.

Looking ahead, Sunshine Beach Surf  L i fesaving Club is  committed to

bui lding on the achievements of  the past  year and overcoming

chal lenges to further our mission.  We wi l l  continue to pr ior i t ize

education,  tra ining,  community engagement and strengthen

partnerships with local  organisat ions and authorit ies to promote beach

safety and environmental  stewardship.

On a f inal  note,  the Board acknowledges the departure this  year of

Yvette McKinley as Director of  Administrat ion.  Yvette has been on the

board for  seven seasons holding different roles and provides a broad

and knowledgeable contr ibut ion to al l  aspects of  the decis ion making.

Thank you,  Yvette,  for  the t ime and commitment given to the club

over such a lengthy period.  You wi l l  be missed by al l  on the Board.

The new season wi l l  come around quickly… Enjoy the break in the off

season!

Kind Regards,

Johnny Gooderham & Gabriel le Coll ins
President & Vice President -  Sunshine Beach SLSC
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John Roderick
Two years ago our club was re-establ ished and 

registered with Queensland Off ice of  Fair  Trading and 

aff i l iated with Sunshine Coast Branch SLS,  Queensland SLS and Austral ia

SLS as i ts  own legal  ent ity of  a surf  l i fe saving club.  I  acknowledge the

signif icant contr ibut ion that the Noosa Heads SLSC gave for  several

seasons and the efforts of  the working group in planning for  the club to

be able to relaunch and have the foundation to have a long term future.  
 
The init ia l  plan for  the last  two seasons has been s imple basics.  Focus on

patrol l ing the beach wel l ,  have a good nipper program and be f inancial ly

prudent which we have continued to achieve.  Maintaining these three

points wi l l  a lways be important governance issues for  the future.  
 
We now are aiming to bui ld on this  success through increasing our

membership and improving the club faci l i ty.  We have started a plan to

increase membership for  the whole club,  from juniors,  associate members

and act ive patrol l ing members from the local  community.  On the club

faci l i ty a master plan has been created .  The improvements wi l l  enhance

the exist ing bui lding through staged works.  In July we are planning to

renovate the upstairs  k itchen to improve income from venue hire and for

our members to enjoy at  social  events for  the l i fesaving club.

Thanks to al l  the members of  the l i fesaving Board who as volunteers have

given of  their  t ime in the bel ief  that a l i fesaving service at  Peregian

Beach is  important.  To al l  the members of  the supporters committee,

your management of  the markets and events throughout the year is  the

f inancial  backbone of the club,  thank you.  
 
I  look forward to seeing the club continue i ts  improvement in the

upcoming seasons.  Yours in Li fesaving

John Roderick 
President -  Peregian Beach SLSC
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Ernie Burrows
Season 2023/2024 has been act ion on al l  f ronts,  

on the beach patrol l ing,  in the training rooms, nippers,  

surf  sports,  IRB racing,  surf  boats and staff  administrat ion.  To f inish the

year off  we had our State Tit les and the Austral ians Championships.  Can

I  urge you to read each sect ions reports as they have had success in a l l

areas of  their  sect ion and have achieved great results .  

The Management Committee has also been caught up in the hectic pace

with our focus on the review of our Const itut ion and By-Laws (thanks to

the sub-committee).  The updates were tr iggered by a strong

recommendation from SLSQ to be compliant.  The Supporters Club have

started updating their  Const itut ion as wel l .  Moving forward both clubs

wil l  have an up-to-date const itut ion and By-Laws that supports both

club’s business and members.  

I  bel ieve that the f i rst  object in the new draft  Const itut ion highl ights

why we exist .  Our f i rst  object is  as fol lows:  The Object of  the

Associat ion is  to part ic ipate as a member of  Surf  L i fe Saving

Queensland (SLSQ) and Surf  L i fe Saving Austral ia  L imited (SLSA)

through and by which surf  l i fesaving and the protect ion and

preservat ion of  l i fe in the aquatic environment can be conducted,

encouraged, promoted, advanced and administered -  Patrol led beaches

save l ives.

Al l  sect ions are reviewing club pol ic ies,  hopeful ly,  to be completed

early in season 2024/25.  The Bui lding Committee have had several

wins,  one at  our second property with the road work under way and the

shed area wi l l  soon be compliant as required by Sunshine Coast

Counci l .  The other is  the renovations to the clubhouse affect ing the

Supporter ’s  Club area has been given the go-ahead with some minor

requirements from the Counci l .  F ingers crossed the renovations wi l l

start  ear ly next year.  
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This year I  took the t ime to vis i t  a l l  the sect ions at  tra ining and
carnivals  and was encouraged to see the commitment and enthusiasm
of al l  members within the sect ions.  

The CTO section has been strengthened by the inclusion of  a part
t ime staff  member.  This  has rel ieved some of the workload placed on
the CTO. Training sessions and new members obtaining awards have
increased.  The commitment and enthusiasm of the new members
highl ights the wi l l ingness to be involved.  

The Nippers have a new committee with several  members moving on
from last  season.  This  has led to a new direct ion and a new look at  the
way nippers and their  parents do things.  Very posit ive.  

Surf  Sports once again are the high achievers in the State Tit les and
Aussies.  Fingers crossed for the success of  the IRB racing team
during their  racing season.  Go the red caps.  
So,  as you can see this  season has s l ipped away,  but can I  say the
future looks great both in patrol l ing numbers and f inance.  

I  can’t  s ign off  without giving a special  thanks to al l  our volunteers
who have kept the beach safe and our support  staff  led by our Admin
Manager Carla.  

See you on the beach.  

Ernie Burrows
Honorary President -  Coolum Beach SLSC 
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I  can’t  bel ieve that another season has passed us by;

 a season that was chal lenging to say the least .  Nor can I  

remember a year where the weather and surf  condit ions have been as

messy as they have been this  year.  I t  is  a  tr ibute to the dedicat ion of

you,  our volunteers,  that Patrols  have been maintained and most

important ly,  there was once again no preventable deaths on our

patrol led beach.  The dangers of  our beach were bought home once

again with the death of  a swimmer south of  the f lagged area at

Discovery Beach,  with members of  our Club involved in trying to

resuscitate the swimmer.  

We had a number of  rescues during our patrols  which were al l  carr ied

out professional ly and with successful  outcomes each t ime. Jordan

El l iott  a lso received a Li fesaving Excel lence award for  a rescue

performed outside patrol l ing hours.  

Despite the condit ions,  we saw an increase in the number of  v is i tors to

our patrol led area with stat ist ics as fol lows:

Beach vis i tat ions:  57,000 

Surf  Rescues:  29 

First  Aid Treatments:  33 

Preventat ive Actions:  755 

Hours Patrol led:  7,811

As with al l  things,  the weather and condit ions were not the only

chal lenges that the Club faced this  year.  I t  was with trepidat ion that

patrols  were reduced to 11  from 12 but thanks to the efforts of  members

who were prepared to put their  hand up and do extra,  the impact was

minimal  so thank you very much to those members;  your efforts are

great ly appreciated.  

As always,  there is  a lot  of  hard work that goes on behind the scenes so

that the Club runs eff ic ient ly and as smoothly as possible.  

Peter Hourn
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To this  end,  Geoff  Jeffcoat has put in a remarkable amount of  t ime and

effort ,  for  which I  would l ike to thank Geoff ;  your efforts are great ly

appreciated.  Thank you to Tony Wickham and Jim Mulheran,  who have

ensured that during the season al l  of  our gear and equipment is  in

good repair  and ready for  patrols  on the weekend. 

To Ji l l  Hamilton and her team of tra iners and assessors,  without your

efforts the Club could not function as i t  does.  The number of  hours

that members of  the Club put into tra ining is  enormous and is  v ita l  in

maintaining our standards and strong focus on Lifesaving Services.  

Our Nippers had a successful  i f  somewhat disrupted season due to

condit ions,  with numbers remaining strong.  Thank you to Andy Cul l i ty

and his  team for del iver ing a successful  program under chal lenging

condit ions.  Once again there is  a lot  of  work behind the scenes and on

a Sunday morning to del iver this  program. I t  is  one of  my favourite

sights to see,  the sea of  pink on a Sunday morning and just  as

important ly,  the mass of  orange to provide water safety.  

Whi le our competitors are not great in numbers,  they certainly did us

proud with their  efforts  this  season.  I ’ l l  leave i t  up to Jim to give

detai ls ,  but i t  was great to see our colours at  State and National

Championships as wel l  at  the Coolangatta Gold again this  year.  

For a smal l  Club with only 2 boat crews we certainly punched above

our weight.  I ’m sure we al l  went on the r ide with our Under 19 crew

and I  can’t  tel l  you how proud we are of  your efforts dur ing the year.

I ’ l l  leave i t  to Travis  to f i l l  in  the detai ls  but wel l  done to al l  and thanks

Travis  for  the work you put in as Surfboat Off icer and Steve

DeLaurence,  who has nurtured and bui l t  the boat sect ion to what i t  is

today,  as wel l  as sweeping both crews.
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At the Branch Dinner last  year we saw a number of  members winning

awards.  Ben Al lsopp: Trainer of  the Year,  Richard Phi l l ips:  L i fesaver of

the Year and Geoff  Jeffcoat:  The Cl ive Hammond Medal .  Wel l  done to

these members and on top of  this ,  we achieved 2nd place in the Buhk

Wilks for  L i fesaving Excel lence so congratulat ions to al l  on another

great result !  

On an excit ing note,  we have f inal ly been given the green l ight from

Counci l  for  the Masterplan to redevelop the Club.  This has been a long

and frustrat ing process,  having been in the pipel ine for  over 5 years,

but we now have certainty,  and the truly hard work begins.  Thanks to al l

those who have been involved,  i t  certainly has been a journey.  

I ’d l ike to thank the Surf  L i fe Saving Board for  their  t ime and guidance

of the Club during the year.  I t  is  your efforts that keep the Club on

track,  and we can al l  be very proud of the sound posit ion that we f ind

ourselves in especial ly with the redevelopment on the horizon.

To the Supporters Club Board led by Craig Hunter-Smith,  thank you for

the record contr ibut ion to Surf  which has certainly bolstered the

bottom l ine and put our club in a very strong posit ion f inancial ly.

To al l  our sponsors big and smal l ,  thank you for  your contr ibut ions to

our Club which assist  great ly with maintenance and purchasing of  gear

and equipment so vita l  to maintaining our services on the beach.  A

special  thanks to our major sponsors:  Austraff ic,  Bel le Property,

Bendigo Bank,  MP Fiona Simpson and Paddy Walsh Paint ing.  A special

thank you to the Isaac’s Family whose generous donation has al lowed

us to upgrade a lot  of  gear and equipment this  year.  

There were changes to the Administrat ion Team in the off ice,  with Roz

Denny taking over the reigns as Li fesaving Administrator.  Al l  I  can say

is  that Roz has been a revelat ion with her abi l i ty to learn and deal  with

matters eff ic ient ly and with no fuss.  Thank you for  your t ime, good

humour and most of  a l l  keeping everything running smoothly.  I f  you

haven’t  met Roz yet,  drop into the off ice and say hel lo.  I  know she

wants to meet al l  of  our members to put a face to names. 56



To Lyn and Amanda,  who have given up their  t ime to show Roz the

ropes,  thank you very much; i t  is  a lways nice to know when someone is

taught by the best.  Thanks also to Fat ima who joined the team and

assisted with Nippers unt i l  she fel l  pregnant and ret i red again.  A

special  thanks also to Ji l l  who stepped in last  year and kept the off ice

functioning,  as wel l  as maintaining her work with tra ining.  To Andy

Daly,  who has completed his  f i rst  year as the General  Manager,  i t  has

been a pleasure to work with a true professional  and what you have

achieved in the year has been outstanding.  For someone who came to

the role with very l i t t le Surf  L i fesaving background, you have hardly

missed a beat and the results  from the Supporters Club are

exceptional .  I  look forward to seeing you around the Club for  years to

come.

It  is  with a t inge of  sadness that I  end this  report ,  as I  wi l l  be stepping

down at  the upcoming AGM, and I  thank each and every one of  you for

your support  dur ing my t ime as President.  I  would especial ly l ike to

thank my wife Lyn,  who has supported me and put up with the

countless meetings that I  attend.  I  leave with confidence knowing that

the Club wi l l  be in good hands and wish Ben Al lsopp al l  the best in the

role of  President.

Peter Hourn
President -  Marcoola SLSC
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Phil  Daniels
Another season done,  an eventful  but successful  

season for  our Club once again.  I  have to thank our

521 total  membership,  129 act ive members and over 200 nippers,

for  a l l  they have contr ibuted to the Club and the larger community

this  season.  I t  hasn’t  a lways been easy and we have had some

unusual  incidents that have required some out of  the ordinary

act ions.  We have achieved a lot  and we need to ref lect and take

stock.  

Our pr imary goal  is  “zero preventable deaths at  our beach”.  This  is

written s l ight ly differently depending on where you read i t ,  f rom our

beach to between the f lags and in Queensland publ ic waterways.

But the goal  is  the same regardless and whi le I  bel ieve we achieved

that again this  season we have to acknowledge that sadly,  one

person did lose their  l i fe in proximity to Mudj imba Surf  L i fesaving

Club,  dur ing our patrol  hours.  Our crew performed to the highest

level ,  as a l l  of  our crews do in the incidents we attend whi le on

patrol .  I  thank them for i t .  This  season the Club received a few thank

you emai ls  from famil ies we have assisted both on the beach and in

the community and I  know we al l  deserve many more.  

Some of stat ist ics for  you:  

We had over 50,000 vis i tors to the beach with 33,000

beachgoers.  That’s  256 people to every patrol l ing member.  

We conducted 14 rescues and 172 f i rst  a id treatments – the

pointy end.  

1 ,512 swimmers were advised – this  number is  important* 

618 r ips observed.  

77 patrol l ing days,  154 patrols  conducted.  

At least  2 land searches conducted.  
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While 14 rescues is  14 people back to family and fr iends,  1 ,512

swimmers were advised – before a rescue was necessary.  This  is

important because i t  h ides what I  cal l  the “near miss incident”.  By that

I  mean,  most people have no idea how close to a ser ious incident they

actual ly were.  Fair  enough, not a l l  people advised were close to a

ser ious incident.  So i f  we cut that number in half ,  just  to be brutal :

That 's  756 people potentia l ly  close to being involved in a ser ious

incident.  Being brutal  again,  i f  even half  of  that number became an

incident,  suddenly our rescues have jumped up from 14 to around 380!

The general  advice is  that a drowning can occur much faster  than

people actual ly think.  So just  how close were some of those people,

real ly? 

Our Club has continued to engage with some of our local  community

groups such as the North Shore Lions,  Mudj imba RSL and of course

our major sponsor,  Joanne Rei l ly  Property who has provided wonderful

support .  Financial ly,  the Club is  in a posit ive posit ion and we are

seeing the benefits  of  being one of  SLSQ’s pr ior i ty l isted clubs.  Added

to that,  we have benefited from SLSQ’s faci l i t ies funding program and

assistance packages aimed at  curbing the effects on our members

from the increasing Work Cover insurance premiums to al l  c lubs.  This

means our membership fees can remain stat ic for  at  least  the short

term, whi le a better  arrangement can be negotiated.  

Other clubs on the Sunshine Coast have also assisted.  We have

received $4,500 from Alexandra Headland SLSC and $9,000 from

Noosa SLSC. This is  of  huge benefit  to us and I  am grateful  for  their

support,  please join me in thanking them when you get the chance.

Throughout the season we have secured near ly $100,000 in grants for

var ious i tems such as the vehicle,  SSV, RWC, our youth and nippers,

tra ining and l i fesaving equipment and bui lding works.  This  effort  came

largely off  the back of,  but not exclusively Tim Young and Harry

Crosthwaite who both worked very hard to secure funding and

negotiate with var ious agencies to get the best products and deals for

us al l .  Thank you.  We have some further plans to upgrade the Club in

general .  
59



The scope of which is  largely dependent on the third round of

faci l i t ies funding from SLSQ (yet to be announced, at  the t ime of

writ ing).  That wi l l  determine the level  of  works involved.  Ear ly

planning has the kiosk area being improved and some renovations to

the f i rst  a id room and l i fesaving off ice at  the northern end of the

bui lding.  

The second half  of  this  year wi l l  see the executive committee review

the Strategic Plan to project i t  forward and set our goals for  the near

future.  We have some planning for  the Club’s processes and

procedures as wel l ,  in an effort  to further clar i fy them and br ing

them in l ine with the evolving environment that governs us.  We

str ive to recruit  and retain our members to further assist  with our

core act iv ity of  patrol l ing,  i t ’s  worth noting that most clubs in

Queensland have experienced some level  of  dif f iculty with

membership and SLSQ has promoted some programs to assist  c lubs

l ike ours in that area.  I  hope that we can take advantage of  that

assistance this  season.  We are increasing our surf  sports equipment

avai lable to members to further engage with those looking to

improve their  ocean ski l ls .

Training continues,  both in theory and the pract ical  appl icat ion of

our ski l ls .  The appl icat ion of  which has been displayed in our act ions

as mentioned previously when I  discussed our responses to

incidents.  

This  has been my f i rst  season as president and one of  the most

enjoyable parts for  me was engaging with our members.  I  am st i l l

gett ing to know many of you but I  am so impressed with the huge

range of  ski l ls  and backgrounds that we have among our

membership.  Our common thread is  we al l  love the beach.  Why else

would we want to spend so much t ime there? Some of us l ike the

idea of  community service and others l ike the pract ical  aspect,  but

it ’s  a l l  on the sand and in the water when you get r ight down to i t .

There are a lot  of  us that want to progress in surf  l i fesaving and

there are many avenues to do that in this  organisat ion.  As a club,  I

think we are progressing wel l .  60



 We are doing more than surviving,  by a long way and that is  a true

statement of  your commitment to our goals.  I  ask you now to

continue that effort  for  the next season and seasons beyond. 

Final ly I ’d l ike to thank you al l  again for  the efforts over the past

season.  The stat ist ics don’t  l ie  but they also sel l  the story short .  We

are al l  volunteers and i t  takes a special  person to give up that

amount of  t ime in the service of  others.  I t  is  a  big deal .  Thank you to

our sponsors and patrons for  support ing our Club.  I  am a very proud

member of  Mudj imba Surf  L i fesaving Club.  

 

Phil  Daniels  
President -  Mudj imba SLSC
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My report  this  year wi l l  begin with the proud claim that

 for  the 108th season there have been no l ives lost  between 

the f lags on Maroochydore beach.  An opening statement that I  hope

every future report  can be proud to cla im. Our core business is  and

wil l  a lways be Lifesaving,  safeguarding the community and vis i tors to

our beach.  

Our great club’s foundations were put in place and although the world

has changed (dramatical ly) ,  I  st i l l  bel ieve that the core of  what we do

and who we are when we make the choice to serve others,  which

shows the humanity in us al l .  The ski l ls  we teach our members have

far-reaching benefits ,  a iding people in many different and sometimes

l i fe-threatening s ituat ions not l imited to the beach.

I  think that sometimes the gravity of  the act ions taken to save,  rescue

and prevent a loss of  l i fe are not truly appreciated because that is  just

what is  done by Lifesavers.  The contr ibut ion that has been made to

countless l ives that have been saved through the act ions of  our

members is  a credit  to their  tra ining and their  sense of  community.

Every member should be proud of their  contr ibut ion to the Club and

that their  efforts  have meant that someone is  enjoying s itt ing at  home

with their  famil ies and loved ones because they were saved by a

Lifesaver who was trained and supported by an army of l ike-minded

Club members.

I t  is  no easy task to manage the Lifesaving sect ion of  a huge club with

over 300 act ive members,  to tra in,  roster  and ensure every patrol

meets our patrol  obl igat ions.  To Drew Moles (Director of  L i fesaving),

every Patrol  Captain and indeed every patrol l ing member,  you have

our grat i tude.  

Our Trainers led by our CTO Michel le Burnett  who has once again this

season trained so many future Lifesavers;  thank you.

Robert Elford
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We do not continue to exist  i f  we do not have new members gaining

their  Bronze Medal l ions,  Surf  Rescue Cert i f icates,  First  Aid and Radio

awards,  IRB qual i f icat ions,  Water Safety and the many other awards

that are necessary to keep our community safe.  This  season,  over

300 Active members took part  in patrol l ing our beach and

safeguarded more than 90,000 vis i tors on our beach.  

Our Junior Activ it ies numbers remain strong with over 300 young

souls beginning their  journey in Li fesaving and hopeful ly our great

club.  To see so many of  the youth that I  was lucky enough to know

and watch grow into adulthood return to the Club with their  chi ldren

is heart-warming to say the least .  The decis ion by every parent who

enrols their  chi ld in a Li fesaving Club is  one that they wi l l  thank you

for when they are old enough to appreciate what they have gained

and the l i fe ski l ls  they have been taught.  

Every Sunday throughout the season,  you cannot be unmoved.

Watching the next generat ions going through their  paces,  beginning

a journey for  some that wi l l  be the making of  l i fe long fr iends and

being part  of  one of  the most iconic Surf  Clubs in history.

Our Nipper program does and cannot exist  but for  the efforts of  so

many dedicated volunteers.  Our history of  being a Surf  Sports icon

remains wel l  intact with so many of  our members excel l ing in the Surf

Sports and other arenas.

Running two successful  Club carnivals  the Century 21 on Duporth

Junior Carnival  and the Murphy Homes Maroochy Classic,  which is

now part  of  the Summer of  Surf  Ser ies.  As a Club we continue to run

and impress al l  those who attend our carnivals;  but they only see the

f inished product.  The countless hours of  administrat ion and

organisat ion that is  required pre and post event is  a credit  to al l

involved.  The support  of  our valued sponsors in Surf  Sport  and

Lifesaving makes i t  possible for  the Club to ensure we have the

resources to carry out our core business and remain an icon in the

sports arena.
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With Aussies back on our own beach this  season,  we showed the rest  of

Austral ia  and the world that we are a power in Surf  Sports that keeps on

improving and astounding those clubs that chose a different path to gain

success.  I  bel ieve our success comes from our depth and that so many of

our great athletes can cla im with pr ide that they have been members at

Maroochydore s ince they began their  L i fesaving journeys,  many s ince

Green Caps.  Belonging to a Club that has stood the test  of  t ime, that is

recognised worldwide and whose history,  as is  i ts  future,  are determined

by the contr ibut ions of  so many who chose to be part  of  a family,  a  Club

and community.   

Our Youth at  Aussies were unoff ic ia l ly  1st  by a considerable margin and

the Seniors 3rd overal l .  An amazing effort  and credit  to our coaching

staff  led by Nathan Greig (Bugsy).  The most grat i fy ing aspect with our

results  was that they were achieved in every arena with al l  contr ibut ing

to the result .

The Clubs efforts in running the Aussies was much appreciated and

acknowledged by SLSA President John Baker and the Organis ing

Committee who once again were impressed with the Club’s abi l i ty to

host with the other Clubs a successful  event.  With approximately 8,300

entr ies i t  is  agreed that i t  was the largest Aussies in history.

The Supporters’  Club continues to trade wel l  sett ing,  new benchmarks

and increasing i ts  f inancial  support  to the Active Club.  Our Supporters’

Club Manager Tim Wagner has shown himself  to be an asset,  with himself

and his  team continuing to improve their  performance and value to the

Club.  Our ageing bui lding is  being nursed toward our proposed rebui ld

and al l  credit  to Tim and the Supporters Board for  their  efforts  in

maintaining such high standards in service and ongoing maintenance.

Our new Club journey is  progressing wel l  with most key requirements

being t icked off  on the way to approvals  being granted.  I  can’t  speak

highly enough of Laurie Murphy (Chair  of  the Bui lding and Works

Committee) and the t ime and guidance he has bought to the project.  
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 There are so many individuals  involved in a l l  aspects of  our new bui ld,

but i t  would be remiss of  me not to acknowledge the input of  Dale

Massie,  Cl int  I rwin,  and Mal Pratt  in the planning stage of  our journey.

The planning,  fundrais ing and relocat ion during the rebui ld are

massive undertakings which we wi l l  a l l  need to be part  of  the many

groups that are working through these aspects of  the rebui ld.

Kim Musgrove has once again been our grants guru,  sourcing over

$175,000 in vita l  funds that have been used to improve our equipment

and faci l i t ies.  Wel l  done Kim; don’t  ever leave.  Our administrat ion staff

have again been the fabric that holds the Club together,  their

countless hours over and above their  paid roles which are unseen by

most,  ensures that the Club continues to adhere to al l  administrat ion

guidel ines and requirements for  the Club to exist .  We are fortunate

that our staff  are not only employees but volunteers who are vested in

the Club through their  famil ies and fr iends.  I  am deeply appreciat ive of

the commitment of  the Board of  Management and the Supporters’

Committee without whose guidance and input the Club would not

continue to be a force in l i fesaving,  sport  and business.

Volunteer ing your t ime and energy to be a productive and car ing

member of  L i fesaving and our Club family is  inherent in everyone that

chooses to wear a patrol  cap,  volunteers and chooses to give back to

our community by safeguarding those who vis i t  our beach.  Not every

member patrols  the beach,  but their  contr ibut ion is  st i l l  essentia l  to

the overal l  operat ion and existence of  our Great Club.

Robert Elford

President -  Maroochydore SLSC
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And so i t  is ,  we celebrate 100 years.  I t  t ruly is  a  
momentous mi lestone,  one that is  a lmost hard to fathom. 

To gain some perspective,  I  found myself  researching what was
happening in the world back in 1924 when our Club was f i rst  formed.
During this  per iod,  our populat ion in Austral ia  was one f i f th of  what i t  is
today,  and we were st i l l  emerging from the horror and huge loss of  l i fe
from the First  World War.  Astonishingly,  more than seven percent of  our
populat ion served,  with two/thirds of  them wounded or k i l led.  Fol lowing
the war,  we were then confronted with the Spanish Flu pandemic that
claimed a further 15,000 Austral ian l ives.  This  was certainly tough t imes,
and yet this  per iod in the 1920s was known as the Roaring Twenties – a
t ime of hope.  There was a profound bel ief  that a br ighter future lay
ahead, and this  bel ief  paved the way for  posit ive change in many areas of
society,  such as women’s freedoms, technology,  arts,  and culture.

 Specif ical ly,  the year 1924 marked the year when the f i rst  ever

crossword puzzle was publ ished by Simon & Schuster and when the f i rst

Winter Olympics was held in Chamonix,  France.  I t  was also,  of  course,

the year that a group of young men from Woombye, who had one year

ear l ier  joined the Mooloolaba Life Saving Club to obtain their  l i fesaving

qual i f icat ions,  left  to start  the Alex Surf  Club.  They had real ised the

importance of  protect ing beachgoers at  Alexandra Headland – a beach

that,  unt i l  that  point  of  t ime, remained unpatrol led.  That was the 24th of

July 1924. Our Club was founded with 32 members,  most of  whom were

l i fesavers,  and our f i rst  c lubhouse,  bui l t  later  that same year,  was a

modest 5m x 2.5m shed.  

My, how both the world and our Alex Surf  Club has changed since then.
Today our clubhouse is  s izeable enough, and of  course we boast a
membership base of  more than 1 ,800 members,  with over 550 act ive
l i fesavers and more than 540 nippers.  Our Supporters Club membership
base is  more than 35,000 which is  testament to our past  and present
employees.

Sam Archer
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We have also enjoyed a great deal  of  success in the competit ive surf

l i fesaving arena.  Our Club is  home to many past and current State and

Austral ian champions,  such as wel l-known Sport  Austral ia  Hal l  of  Fame

Inductees Hayden Kenny,  Kr isty Munroe and Grant Kenny who al l

deserve special  mention.  Al l  three were outstanding competitors who

were born and bred Alex Surf  Club members – and we have so many

more up and comers r is ing through the ranks which promise excit ing

t imes ahead for  our Club now and for the next 100 years,  I  am sure.  

We have achieved so many things at  our Club,  and that goes beyond

competit ions.  Indeed, one of  our greatest  honours is  protect ing

beachgoers on our stretch of  sand for  100 years.  Yes,  so much has

been achieved but there are so many more things we aspire to be and

are yet to fulf i l .  Without a doubt however,  what I  bel ieve is  our

greatest  achievement is  the community we have nurtured.  That is  what

this  Club is  real ly about – community.  Indeed, the word ‘Club’  is  a

descr iptor that has never sat  wel l  with me. We are so much more than

that.  We are a community and a very special  one at  that.  For me

personal ly,  i t  even goes further than that.  I  consider this  community,

this  group of people,  part  of  my extended family.  I  love them and am

so proud to have served.  

Sam Archer 
Honorary President -  Alexandra Headland SLSC
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Matthew Horder
What can I  say,  another great season at  Mooloolaba Surf  

L i fe Saving Club.  We have achieved so much again not only for  our

members but for  the wider community.  Up front,  can I  say thank you

to al l  of  you who keeps our beach safe and make our club great.  Our

club's  leadership and community-minded focus have fostered an

improved culture,  which was clear ly evident by the remarkable

turnout at  our annual  dinner,  where 300 members joined in

celebrat ion.  

This  strong part ic ipat ion ref lects the vibrant,  inclusive,  and engaged

member base,  demonstrat ing the posit ive impact of  our col lect ive

efforts and dedicat ion to l i fe saving and the community.  The season

started with some terr i f ic  acknowledgement of  several  of  our

members.

John (Joe) Western received his  60 year long service award – an

incredible achievement.  At the annual  branch awards three of  our

members received acknowledgement – Rod Taylor for  Sunshine Coast

Masters Athlete of  the Year,  Charl i  Jones for  Sunshine Coast U21

Youth Lifesaver of  the Year and John Lowe for Sunshine Coast Club

Captain of  the Year.  John Lowe also was elected as Director of  L i fe

Saving and Sunshine Coast Branch.  

Further,  we had the fol lowing members also representing the Club

within SLSQ, Mark Weyer (recently resigned after  6 years) ,  Steve

Barclay and Manuel  Barth on the SLSQ Board,  and Courtney Angel  on

the membership services committee.  Thank you al l  for  going above

and beyond representing the Club at  higher levels .  
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We can be proud to say that this  season has been another of  act ion,

with a focus on giving back to our broad membership.  I  hope you

continue to notice some posit ive changes throughout the club,  here

are a few of our achievements:

Our coaching team once again has tra ining sessions incredibly wel l

attended and avai lable to al l  members.  This  includes our volunteer

coaches who provide many hours giving back to the club.

Our f i rst  athlete in many years qual i fy ing and competing in the

Nutr i-grain I ron Ser ies – wel l  done Dom Stitt  and the team behind

you.

Our youth social  calendar,  led by Charl i  Jones,  has engaged our

younger demographic culminat ing in 40 youngsters attending the

Branch Youth Bal l .

Our f inancial  management continues to improve f inding a

responsible balance between giving back to members and saving

for the future.  Our strong balance sheet with over $2.6mil l ion

provides a healthy future for  us a l l .  

A successful  Supporters Club who have been able to continue to

provide the f inancial  stabi l i ty for  our Club – thank you.

Our relat ionships with sponsors and partners have been

strengthened and are enduring including several  new sponsors to

the club.

The media representat ion across al l  out lets has been very strong,

there would barely a week go by when Mooloolaba SLSC is  not

featured in some form of media.

The second SRC Camp was faci l i tated for  the U/14 and was a

wonderful  success!  In September 2024 we wi l l  take the camp to

Tal lebudgera for  the f i rst  t ime.

Successful ly co-hosted the Austral ian Surf  L i fe Saving Tit les,  one

of the biggest “Aussies” in over 20 years.

Our Masters team won their  second State Tit les in a row, plus

f inished second at  the Austral ian Tit les – look out Bondi,  we are

coming after  you.
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Once again host ing the very successful  ANZAC Day Service,
regarded as one of  our best yet.
And of course,  patrol l ing many hours on our beach.

Thank you to the dedicat ion and commitment of  our Management
Committee,  thank you to Craig Vipond, Craig Parker,  Rachael
Robinson,  Nick Gale,  Mark Hickey,  and Conor Walsh.

We are extremely lucky to have a dedicated team of staff  who always
demonstrate the highest level  of  professional ism and experience and
without them we cannot achieve our goals.  Thank you to Amanda,
Nikki ,  Tanya,  Tiarrn,  Merr i l l ,  Rhys,  Maddy, Josh and Corey.

As we look ahead to the future,  I  am confident that the Mooloolaba
Surf  L i fe Saving Club wi l l  continue to plan and grow. We have much
to consider for  our future and with your ongoing support  and
dedicat ion,  I  have no doubt that we wi l l  continue to make a posit ive
impact on our community and save l ives on our beaches for
generat ions to come.

Thank you once again for  your hard work and commitment over the
past season.  I  look forward to working with you al l  in the years to
come.

Matthew Horder
President -  Mooloolaba SLSC
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Shane Gale
Greeting to al l  c lub members and interested part ies,  

the 2023-24 has been very busy and very successful  

year for  Kawana Surf  Club.  The Club has a real  feel ing of  excitement

around its  future.  This  is  part ly due to the upcoming renovations

(which I  wi l l  go into further detai l ) ,  our improving f inancial  posit ion

and the growth in our youth involvement.  I  am proud to say that his

season saw zero drownings on our stretch of  patrol led beach.  I  would

l ike to step away from a tradit ional  report  format and focus on some

of the main areas that is  dr iv ing the success of  Kawana Surf  Club.

Of the 27,000 beach goers that used Kawana Beach during patrol

hours we are proud to report  the fol lowing stat ist ics.  Fatal i t ies – 0,

Rescues – 21,  Preventat ive Actions – 4608, First  Aid – 114.  Our beach

is busier  than ever with the increasing populat ion of  the Sunshine

Coast.  This  season,  once again,  we have been able to f i l l  every

rostered Patrol  due to our committed Life Savers.  We have been able

to increase and improve our beach capabi l i t ies with the addit ion of  a

new tractor through a grant and sponsorship from Budget Direct.  In

addit ion,  with a grant from SLSQ and sponsorship from Budget Direct

we were able to replace our very rusted patrol  vehicle with a newer

patrol  vehicle.  The Surf  team has been applying for  every grant that

wi l l  help with the r is ing costs of  keeping our beach running.  We have

had new Gold and Plat inum sponsors come on board with Shadforth

Civi l ,  BCF, Cricks and Beach Side Resort  as major sponsors.  Our goal

is  to start  the season knowing that we wi l l  not have to rely on grants

to cover our costs.  We are not there yet but be we are gett ing closer

thanks to our fantast ic sponsors and fundraisers.
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Membership – We have a very committed and experienced patrol l ing

member base.  As mentioned, we have been able to f i l l  every rostered

Patrol  due to our committed Life Savers,  many of  which do wel l  over

their  rostered hours to support  weaker patrols .  Our chal lenge for  the

future is  maintaining a patrol l ing member base that can not only

patrol  between the f lags but a lso have enough members to conduct

more regular  roving patrols  both North and South to areas that are

seeing an increase in swimmers.

This year we were able to use a member retention grant of  $9000 to

go direct ly into members incentives.  These incentives included, ear ly

membership payment discounts,  25% discount on membership fees i f

you complete 45hrs or  more in the past  season,  refund of bronze

medal l ion course fees i f  you complete 40hr within 12 months and free

rash shirts  for  a l l  patrol l ing members.  Along with this  we are in the

process of  commencing construct ion of  the new Surf  faci l i ty which

wil l  update our Surf  storage and give members a tra ining and kitchen

area.  These init iat ives and improvements could not have come at  a

better  t ime with al l  smal ler  c lubs report ing a drop in act ive patrol l ing

members and I  hope these incentives and upgrades wi l l  set  a path for

our future success of  this  proud Club.  Our juniors and youth are our

future,  and we continue to focus on keeping them engaged and

having them join our ranks as SRC’s and patrol l ing members.

Leadership – We have introduced several  roles and committees to

support  and lead in the areas that the Surf  committee did not

previously have the resources or expert ise to do.  These are the

Bui lding Committee,  Fundrais ing Committee,  Social  Media Advisor

and the spl i tt ing of  the Youth and Member Development roles into

two separate roles.  Al l  of  these have played a part  in this  year’s

success.  As a Committee,  i t  is  reassur ing and welcomed to have

members helping with their  knowledge and passion to f i l l  these

posit ions.  The Leadership and support  of  Kane and Jen and the

Supporters Club is  a key part  of  our f inancial  and cohesive success.

The Supporters Club continues to support  our main aim of keeping

our beach goers and vis i tor  safe at  Kawana beach.
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The Nippers Committee led by Megan has continued their  growth in

junior and youth involvement in surf  sports.  Nippers and youth

administrat ion and management can be very chal lenging,  and Megan

and the team have done an outstanding job of  encouraging

involvement and keeping our youth members engaged with our Club.

To al l  members of  the Surf  Committee and our administrat ive team

thank you for  your outstanding leadership.  Rachel le and Greera thank

you for  your support  to keep our committees and Club functioning.

Support  – The Club has seen a level  of  support  from internal  and

external  associat ions that I  don’t  bel ieve has been avai lable or

del ivered in the past .  SLSQ Board and Branch have act ively engaged

with us to look at  member retention and bui lding maintenance /

suitabi l i ty.  Our sponsors have been extremely generous,  grant

opportunit ies have been avai lable and f i l led,  neighbouring larger

Clubs have given f inancial  support  and representat ives of

Government have act ively sought our plans and thoughts for  the

future direct ion of  KWSLSC. This has culminated with a continued

improved f inancial  posit ion and i t  has also al lowed the Club to

complete the current Surf  Faci l i ty upgrade without having a debt.  I

want to f in ish up by thanking every past  and present patrol l ing

member,  their  famil ies,  l i fe members,  volunteers,  sponsors,  and

patrons of  KWSLSC for your support  this  last  season.  KWSLSC has a

bright future and I  am very proud to be a part  of  i t .

Shane Gale
President -  Kawana Waters SLSC

73



Peter Aitkin
Our s ingle most important object ive is  to provide a 

safe swimming environment at  Dicky Beach.  The other important

aspects of  the club -  Surf  Sports,  Junior Activ it ies,  inclusiveness,  and

community engagement al l  provide the ski l ls ,  enthusiasm and

wil l ingness of  our volunteers to provide that service at  the beach.  The

Lifesaving Committee has been outstanding in providing this  tra ining,

operat ional  equipment and guidance to patrols  and patrol  captains.  This

season saw the introduction of  a wave runner to support  our l i fesaving

operat ions.  The Club continues to access tra ining ensuring we can

effect ively use this  equipment.  Our members have also taken on

activ it ies to support  the wider community continuing the “PIPPY

Program”.  

 I t  offers the opportunity for  the wider community to become involved

in l i fesaving,  surf  awareness and nipper act iv it ies.  Is  success measured

by the number of  medals? No, success is  better  measured by observing

the progress of  our athletes and teams through the rounds,  into quarter

f inals ,  repechages,  semi-f inals  and f inals .  The work done this  season

lays the basis  for  an even more successful  season in 2024-2025. Junior

Activit ies (JAC) continues to have a very healthy membership.  This  is  in

no smal l  part  to the t ime and planning by the JAC into making the

nipper days excit ing and chal lenging,  at  t imes under very chal lenging

condit ions.  The JAC placed a big focus on recruitment of  volunteers

and as a result  I  have met some fantast ic new members performing roles

on the JAC, water safety on nipper days and at  carnivals ,  off ic ia ls ,  age

managers,  BBQ cooks,  canteen assistants,  and those chaperones and

assistants during the camps at  the Club and the annual  “Harry’s  Hut"

adventure.
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I  would l ike to recognise and thank the administrat ive staff ,  who do

an amazing job and undertake their  role with l i t t le fuss.  There are

Club and SLSQ processes in place to acknowledge and reward our

volunteers.  Our Honors and Awards Committee continues to accept

nominat ions for  Club and SLSQ awards which recognise our Club

Volunteers and their  work.  The next big chal lenge for  the Club is  the

development of  SLSQ land at  Bokar ina Beach.  This  is  current ly in the

ear ly planning stage.  Our Club wi l l  continue to grow with the untir ing

efforts of  a l l  the volunteers,  the off ice bearers,  patrol  members,

committee members,  team managers,  coaches,  helpers,  age managers

and parents.  

The future plans include extensions to the Club,  strategic plan and

the development in and around the Dicky Beach foreshore.  Our

younger members are inf luenced by social  media.  I t  is  important l i fe

and ordinary members,  patrol  captains,  coaches,  age managers and

other leaders l isten to these members.  We have a responsibi l i ty for

them to take on leadership roles so our tradit ions wi l l  not be

forgotten but they have the ski l ls  to progress and respond to future

chal lenges.  The Club has the members in place to respond posit ively

to these chal lenges and look forward to this  continuing next season.  

Peter Aitken
President -  Dicky Beach SLSC
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How best to descr ibe Mets’  Season 2023-24? 

Words l ike stabi l i ty,  spir i t ,  growth,  v igi lance,  and celebrat ion come to

mind.  

2023-24 represented a s ignif icant mi lestone in our Club history.  On

the 7th of  October,  2023 marked 90 years s ince the f i rst  volunteer

patrol  of  Kings Beach.  In 1933 i t  was Cl i f f  Croughan,  Doug Mabin,  and

Bi l l  Porter  who made up the f i rst  volunteer patrol…fast  forward 90

years,  i t  was the Sand Crabs and Des Dwyer patrol  teams keeping

Kings Beach safe.  The highl ight of  our celebrat ions was the 90th

Anniversary Gala Bal l  in October 2023. The Club Gala Bal l  was a great

success where the Club shone br ight ly celebrat ing our past,  present,

and future.  The production of  a feature video as a legacy init iat ive and

to support  the 90th celebrat ions was such a posit ive experience in

reconnecting with the Old Boys and famil ies who shaped the Club in

its  more formative t imes.  Thank you to the 90th organis ing committee

who did an amazing job (Just ine Ashworth,  Stuart  Cordingley,  Jacob

Thomson, Sharon Punter,  and El iza Dreves).  

Total  Club membership for  the season was 845 Members including 189

Active Members,  316 Junior Activ it ies Members and 289 Associate

Members.  Thank you al l  for  your membership,  service,  and support

throughout a very successful  season for  the Club.  Most pleasing this

season has been our Members’  shared commitment to the Mets One-

Club family.

We should al l  be very proud of our Club and i ts  achievements this

season,  the highl ights of  which are outl ined below. 

Brett Magnussen

76



Our Operat ions Group -  Al l  areas of  the Club have again been wel l

managed this  season,  which is  only possible through the commitment

of our operat ional  leaders.  Thank you to our Club Captain,  Andrew

Richards,  for  his  leadership of  the Club’s operat ions,  which has again

been a key component of  the Club’s success this  season.  Andrew was

effect ive in each of  his  capacit ies,  namely,  Club Captain,  coordinat ion

of the Operat ions Group, coordinat ion of  the Fr iday night raff les,

l ia ison with SLSQ Sunshine Coast Branch and Counci l  on l i fesaving

matters,  and communicat ion with the Board on operat ional  issues.  

L i fesaving:  Thank you to Andrew, Deputy Club Captains,  Shane

Punter,  Harry Richards,  Carl  Perkins and Cameron Ray,  and our Patrol

Captains and their  respective teams for  your service over the season.

This season saw over 130,000 members of  the publ ic vis i t  Kings

Beach,  which with increased vis i tat ion to Happy Val ley,  is  now one of

the busiest  stretches of  beach on the Sunshine Coast.  This  combined

with chal lenging condit ions on many weekends during the season led

to 27 rescues and 139 f i rst  a id cases.  

This  season saw our own Simon Richards,  Kirsten Phi l l ips,  and El iza

Dreves appointed to key roles with SLSQ and Sunshine Coast Branch.

Simon as the State Li fe Saving Off icer who chairs  the State Li fe Saving

Committee,  and Kirsten as the State Membership Off icer who chairs

the State Membership Committee,  with both report ing to the SLSQ

Board.  This  is  the f i rst  t ime that one Club has Members leading 2 x

State Committees.  Meanwhi le,  Kirsten is  a lso the Sunshine Coast

Branch Director of  Youth and Membership,  and El iza is  the Sunshine

Coast Branch Deputy Director of  Youth.  We are very fortunate to

have Members in these leadership roles given access to l i fesaving

knowledge and networks this  provides to our Club.  

Training and Education:  Thank you to our Chief  Training Off icer,

Aleisha Edwards,  and our Trainers and Assessors who have again done

a fantast ic job.  This  is  a function that is  cr i t ical  to the Club’s

sustainabi l i ty in maintaining and growing our patrol l ing members’

necessary awards and ski l ls .
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 This  season saw 26 new SRC’s and 27 new Bronzies receive their

awards in addit ion to the huge task of  ski l ls  maintenance and new

awards for  exist ing members.  

Member Development:  Thank you to our Member Development Off icer,

El iza Dreves,  and her team who have again achieved plenty this  season.

Engagement and development of  our youth continues to be a Club

success story which has seen retention of  many of  our nippers to now

being senior act ive members.  This  has been possible through the team’s

energy in coordinat ing engagement act iv it ies through member

recognit ion init iat ives,  events such as the Youth Bal l ,  Camp Commando

leadership camp, l i fesaving training and education courses,  and Club

BBQ’s,  as wel l  as contr ibut ing to Branch and or SLSQ programs such as

PULSE Advanced Lifesaving.  I f  not busy enough, El iza and her team also

coordinate the Club’s Annual  Dinner,  award nominat ions,  and the end of

season members’  survey!  

Junior Activ it ies:  Thank you to Junior Activ it ies Chairperson,  Mel  Ray,

the Junior Activ it ies Committee,  and legion of  parent volunteers for  a

successful  nipper season.  Our nippers excel led in a l l  areas including

l i fesaving,  education,  surf  sports,  and member development act iv it ies.

I t  was great to see Mets again host the Junior Branch carnival  at  Kings

Beach,  which I  look forward to being a regular  feature of  our annual

Club calendar.  Our nipper program continues to underpin the Club’s

abi l i ty to enhance member retention rates and our pipel ine of  patrol l ing

members.  

Surf  Sports:  Thank you to Surf  Sports Off icer,  Phi l l  Ashworth,  coaches,

team managers,  and volunteers for  a successful  season which

culminated in the recent Aussies hosted on the Sunshine Coast.  Phi l l ’s

leadership has seen the Mets’  surf  sports program posit ively develop

this  season by br inging together discipl ines and age groups as one-

club,  creat ing a governance framework through the production of  a surf

sports manual ,  bui lding Club spir i t  through init iat ives such as camps,

part ic ipat ion at  interstate carnivals ,  and the Mets Club Champs,  and

providing access to qual i ty,  professional  coaching.
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A thr iv ing surf  sports program is  a key contr ibutor to Mets’  success as

it  bui lds Club spir i t ,  prof i le,  and our capabi l i ty to save l ives.

Congratulat ions to al l  athletes and the Surf  Sports team for your results

and Club representat ion at  a l l  carnivals ,  in a l l  discipl ines contested,

across the season.  I  look forward to fol lowing our team competing at

the World Lifesaving Championships later  this  year on the Gold Coast.  

Our Committees:  Our standing committees are acknowledged for their

contr ibut ion during the season.  Of special  note,  thank you to Brent

Hi ley for  his  t i re less work in leading our fundrais ing committee in

securing Grant funding and sponsorships.  Thank you to Beth and Shane

Kunkel ,  supported by Emily Hi ley,  for  leading our fundrais ing for  the

QLD Surf  Appeal  result ing in >$35,000, a fantast ic result !   

Whi lst  on fundrais ing,  a huge thank you to our patrol l ing members for

dr iv ing the Fr iday night raff les,  and our surf  sports team for the

Saturday afternoon raff les,  a  combined net outcome of >$35,000,

another excel lent outcome. The Bui lding Committee was not formed or

convened as there was no requirement this  season.   

Our Li fe Members:  Our Li fe Members’  contr ibut ion over the season is

acknowledged -  we are fortunate to have so many Life Members act ive

in the Club passing on their  experience.  I t  is  with sadness that we

acknowledge the passing of  L i fe Member,  Norm Irvine,  and Old Boys,

Gordon King,  Bryan Cost igan,  and Michael  Ogle over the course of  the

season,  and remember the contr ibut ions made to the Club.

Condolences go out to the respective famil ies.
 
Our Assets:  Our Clubhouse,  the Pavi l ion,  and the Boatshed are

Sunshine Coast Regional  Counci l  (Counci l)  assets with community

leases in favour of  Mets.  The Club has an agreement in place with the

Caloundra State School  for  the Queen Street Storage Shed.  

The Queen Street Storage Shed was improved this  season through the

connection of  power (and solar) ,  as wel l  as the provis ion of  gym

equipment.  Thank you to Jim Chisholm for leading the connection of

power/solar ,  to Brent Hi ley for  securing Grant funding,  and to Phi l l

Ashworth and Mol ly for  developing the shed into a tra ining and craft

storage faci l i ty.  
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Discussions with Counci l  are ongoing to secure a long-term extension

to the lease for  the Pavi l ion.  

Unfortunately,  the Boatshed Redevelopment (aka the Kings Beach

Lifesaving Faci l i ty (KBLF) project)  was delayed this  season due to the

Counci l ’s  Coastal  Hazard Adaptat ion Strategy and i ts  potentia l  impacts

on the proposed development.  This  has required s ignif icant redesign

to address environmental  and overland f low issues.  Pleasingly,  the

Counci l  remains committed to funding the project,  however,  a

proposed construct ion start  date is  subject to resolving the design

chal lenges.  

Our Supporters’  Club:  Thank you to the Supporters’  Club,  Kings Beach

Surf  Club,  Board for  the posit ive working relat ionship with which Mets

enjoys.  The Supporters’  Club provided s ignif icant f inancial  support

and support  in-kind this  season which has been cr i t ical  to the

sustainabi l i ty of  Mets.  The Supporters’  Club and Mets (Surf  L i fe Saving

(SLS) Club) Boards continue to work closely to str ive to increase the

level  of  support  to the SLS Club to enable i t  to fulf i l  i ts  core purpose.

Al l  Mets Members are encouraged to frequent the Kings Beach Surf

Club as every dol lar  spent ult imately supports our Club.  

Our Board:  I  wish to acknowledge the work of  the Board and the

measured way in which i t  has managed the Club’s f inances,

governance,  regulatory compliance,  and strategic direct ion.  The Board

has been unif ied in i ts  purpose,  placing Members and Club Values

central  to i ts  decis ion making.  The Club is  in a sound f inancial  posit ion

notwithstanding the ever- increasing annual  cost  base.  Key f inancial

chal lenges moving forward include f i t  out costs for  the KBLF project,

Clubhouse bui lding compliance cost r isks,  and maintenance of

sponsorships and fundrais ing income levels .  Thank you to Vice-

President,  Sharon Punter,  Treasurer,  Graham Archdal l ,  Secretary,

Just ine Ashworth,  and Directors,  Brent Hi ley,  David Ray,  and Ben

Bryce for  your commitment and dedicat ion to the Club.  
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Final ly,  thank you to the fol lowing who have supported and

contr ibuted to the success of  the Club over the course of  the season.

Our Patron,  Andrew Wal lace MP, and Vice Patrons,  Counci lor  Terry

Landsberg and Jason Hunt MP. Our sponsors l isted ear l ier  in the

report .  Our Administrat ion team of Kay Blokkeerus and Kate Coles.  

Moving Forward:  The 90th celebrat ions makes one ponder about

Mets’  100-year mi lestone.   Our chal lenge,  as custodians,  is  to str ive

to bui ld a thr iv ing Club that can better  serve i ts  Members and

community moving forward.   We are wel l  placed to do so given the

momentum created this  season.  

Br ing on season 2024-25!  

Brett Magnussen 
President -  Metropol i tan Caloundra SLSC
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Jeff  Butler
The 2023-2024 season saw the Bribie Is land Surf  L i fe

Saving Club celebrated i ts  centenary which saw many

events held at  the beginning of  the season.  Start ing with

the formal  lunch,  probably the best function I 've attended in a long

time, and f inishing the fol lowing week with the recovery breakfast .  A

great t ime was had by al l  that  attended, with past  members renewing

fr iendships forged over the years with both past  and present members.

Listening to al l  the old stor ies told during the formal  lunch was in my

opinion a highl ight of  the events.  The f inal  event celebrat ing our 100

years was the unvei l ing of  the "Plaques in the Park".  This  saw the

strategic placement of  four double-sided plaques in Bluey Piva Park,

adjoining the surf  c lub.  The plaques covered al l  aspects of  the Br ibie

Is land.  Surf  L i fe Saving Club's  involvement in the community over the

past 100 years.  Congratulat ions must go to Monica MacArthur and

the 100-year committee for  a l l  the t ime and effort  they put in to

ensure that the celebrat ions ran smoothly and that a l l  events were of

the highest qual i ty.

I 'd a lso l ike to thank the Old Boys for  the efforts put into assist ing

during the 100-year celebrat ions,  providing the BBQs over the period.

With the conclusion of  the 2023 -  2024 Patrol  season,  I 'd l ike to take

this  opportunity to thank al l  those members who offered up their

valuable t ime to keep Woorim Beach safe for  a l l  beachgoers and

swimmers.  Although the season started s lowly,  we see a steady

increase in,  not only patrol l ing members but in total  membership

including associates and Junior Activ it ies.  I 'd a lso l ike to thank our

club Captain,  Corey Cumner,  and his  v ice-captain,  Matt  for  ensuring

that the rosters were always up to date and al lowing the patrols  to run

eff ic ient ly over the season.  
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So once again congratulat ions and thank you from myself  and the

Bribie Is land S.L.S.C.  Committee to al l  patrol l ing members for  the past

season.  Hopeful ly next season wi l l  see a further increase in patrol l ing

members,  enabl ing addit ional  patrols  and a reduction in patrol  hours

for our members.

Membership at  the end of the 2023 -24 Season saw a s l ight decrease

in patrol l ing members from the previous season,  however,  prof ic ient

members who are no longer patrol l ing have increased.  Junior

Activit ies had an increase from 200 members last  season to 238 for

this  season.  Total  membership for  the past  season stayed steady

at 543 members.

I  would l ike to take this  opportunity to thank the club’s committee who

have put in many hours of  hard work to keep the club running,  not only

during the patrol l ing season but a l l  year round. The start  of  the season

saw several  changes in the way we del iver tra ining and saw hours put

into preparing,  del iver ing,  and processing courses.  Thanks to the

perseverance,  frustrat ing at  t imes,  to David (Curly)  Cumner who

stepped up,  in the absence of  a CTO to fulf i l l  a l l  the club’s tra ining

needs and managed to get through the season del iver ing the Ski l ls

Maintenance,  SRC, Bronze,  and IRB Courses,  with Branch helping out

with the del ivery of  First  Aid and ART Courses.  Thank you also to al l

the Trainers and Assessors who assisted in del iver ing and assessing

the courses for  the season.

Our two major fundraisers,  the annual  col lect ion and the golf  day,

were wel l  patronised with attendance up and providing much-needed

funds to cover our day-to-day expenditures.  We have the Old Boys to

thank for  their  k ind donations and sponsorship throughout the year,  so

thank you Old Boys and I  look forward to working with you in the

upcoming season.



Again,  this  year the club received ongoing support  from the Moreton

Bay Regional  Counci l .  Support  a lso has come from our Federal ,  State,

and Local  members,  as wel l  as the kind donations and support

received from the Old Boys,  Br ibie Is land RSL,  Rotary Club,  L ions

Club,  Busy Fingers,  and Victory Press.

The 2023 -  24 Season also saw Bribie Is land S.L.S.C.  host the junior

team's carnival  which was wel l  patronised and overal l ,  very successful .

Many thanks should go to the volunteers who are constant ly cleaning

and maintaining the club's  faci l i t ies and keeping them in a good state

of upkeep.

The patrol l ing season also saw the continuat ion,  of  the wheelchair-

accessible matt ing and wheelchair  hire scheme. This  wi l l  be reviewed

by the counci l  in the offseason.  And f inal ly in closing the new club bus

wil l  be arr iv ing on the 17th of  June,  i t  has only taken two years to

arr ive.

Jeff  Butler
President -  Br ibie Is land S.L.S.C.  Inc.

84



Kylie Robins
As another season draws to a close i t  is  a lways very 

humbling to review the year and recognise al l  that  we have 

achieved.  Redcl i f fe Peninsula SLSC has always been a l i t t le dif ferent

to larger clubs and our abi l i ty to be versat i le,  think outside the box

and get things done is  something I  am immensely proud of.

This  year our Executive Committee real ised that as a club keeping

things status quo was no longer going to cut i t .  There is  huge

potentia l  in our club for  growth and i t  is  t imely for  us to make some

changes to make us an appeal ing option to new members.  Sometimes

the conversat ions and ref lect ions we undertook were confronting and

uncomfortable,  but they were al l  necessary.  Through this  process we

real ised that the culture of  the club is  our number one pr ior i ty and

we need to get that r ight.  To do this  we brought in our new Vis ion,

Mission and Values statement.  This  statement which now hangs

proudly in our club house art iculates what i t  means to be a Redcl i f fe

member.  By embracing these we have already started to see a shift  in

some behaviours within the club.  I  encourage al l  members to make

themselves famil iar  with these values and vis ion and implement them

within your var ious roles within the club.

This season saw our club house get a much needed refresh with paint

that was kindly donated by Dulux.  Thank you to Rob and your team of

volunteers who so enthusiast ical ly painted away the yel low for a

fresh white open look.  Thanks to the refresh of  the club house we

were this  year able to see the incorporat ion of  the youth space.  This

space is  a f i rst  step in growing and retaining our youth membership.

The space is  wel l  used by other Youth Development crew. Thank you

to Rob and Kar la who bui l t  and furnished the space so wel l .

The Youth Development Crew this  year have grown again in numbers

and have been act ive across the club.
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Surf  L i fe Saving tradit ional ly has a high drop off  rate of  engagement

with the 14-20 year old age group. We have not been immune to this

so have put in place some act iv it ies to work with this  cohort  and

adjusted to making our program f lexible to suit ,  work,  patrol ,  school

and social  commitments.  I t  was an honour to attend the Youth Bal l

with 13 of  our Youth Development crew this  year.  They represented

our Club with such a high standard that I  couldn’t  have been prouder

of them. Thanks to Rob, Nicolette and Red for your dedicat ion to our

Youth Crew.

The Junior Activ it ies team under the leadership of  Rob, once again

this  year smashed it  out of  the park.  The Nippers program is

continuously evolving,  and whi le I  may be biased,  I  bel ieve we have

one of  the best run programs in the state.  This  program couldn’t  run

without the amazing volunteers.  I t  takes a lot  of  people to make the

place hum on a Sunday,  from the Age Managers,  Water Safety,

Canteen volunteers,  set  up and pack up crews,  coaches and off ic ia ls .

Thank you al l  for  your dedicat ion.

It  was great this  year to see the continuat ion of  growth of  our

numbers of  off ic ia ls  and coaches.  Your dedicat ion to help our

Nippers part ic ipate in surf  sports has not gone unnoticed.

Al l  of  the competitors at  carnivals  this  year did a wonderful  job

representing the Club.  Seeing our club cap on the leaderboard for

the f i rst  t ime in many years at  the Seniors State Surf  L i fe Saving

Championships and also at  Aussies was a real  highl ight.  I  cant wait  to

see them back there next season!

Our Patrol  members,  under the strong leadership of  Phi l ,  once again

this  season did a fantast ic job of  keeping vis i tors to our beach safe.

Suttons Beach again remains fatal i ty free.  I  enjoy vis i t ing our patrol

members and watching them interact with our community.  I t  is  a

wonderful  thing you are al l  doing and I  look forward to seeing you al l

on your return next year.
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Through some of our conversat ions as an Executive i t  was noted that

one of  the things which wi l l  bui ld a stronger patrol  and club is

bui lding our social  connections and creat ing a real  community.

With this  being the case,  we plan on focussing efforts on creat ing

social  opportunit ies for  club members and patrol  members to better

get to know each other.  Our Patrol  Captains do a great job in keeping

their  teams engaged, but we would l ike to see that stretch across

mult iple teams.

This is  only a smal l  snapshot of  a l l  the amazing things that have taken

place at  our Club,  there is  so much more to tel l  and so much left  to

achieve!

In closing I  would l ike to say a special  thank you to my fel low

Executive Committee members -  Phi l  Reed, Michael  Gi l l-Bai ley,  Rob

van Driel  and Andrew Middlton.  You al l  wear many hats around the

club and give so much of your t ime to ensure our Cub and i ts

members succeed. Thank you also goes to your famil ies who often go

without seeing you or spending t ime with you so that you can

undertake your duties at  the Club.  

Wel l  done team Reddy! Lets see what amazing things we can do in

2024/25!

Kylie Robins
President -  Redcl i f fe Peninsula SLSC
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Date

Address

Name of Firm

Name of Partner

19/06/2024

Unit 9, Serenity Waters

123 Brisbane Road

Mooloolaba QLD 4557

Diana Taylor, Registered Company Auditor

In accordance with Subdivision 60-C of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, I am pleased to
provide the following declaration of independence to the directors of Surf Life Saving Queensland Sunshine Coast Branch Inc.
As the lead audit partner for the audit of the financial report of Surf Life Saving Queensland Sunshine Coast Branch Inc for
the year ended 30 April 2024, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 April 2024
there have been no contraventions of:

(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Australian Charities and Not for Profits Commission Act 2012 in relation to 
the audit; and

(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

SURF LIFE SAVING QUEENSLAND SUNSHINE COAST BRANCH
INC ABN: 82 260 488 697

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER S 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001 TO
THE DIRECTORS OF SURF LIFE SAVING QUEENSLAND SUNSHINE 

COAST BRANCH INC

sps audit
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INCOME
Affiliation and capitations 
Award fees
 Branch development 
Carnival entry fees 
Clothing sales 
Conference fees 
Donations and gifts 
Functions 
Grant received 
Interest received 
Profit from sale of PPE 
Sponsorship 
Subsidy - Administration 
Subsidy - QFEF 
Subsidy - Wages 
Training 
Trust distributions - Betashares Legg Mason Australian Bond Fund 
Trust distributions - MCP Master Income Trust 
Sundry income

TOTAL INCOME 

EXPENDITURE
Accounting fees 
Administration charges 
Auditors remuneration 
Bank charges
Branch team costs 
Branch youth camp costs 
Carnival expenses 
Cleaning 
Depreciation 
Electricity 
Function costs 
Honorariums 
Insurance 
Insurance - workcover 
Change in value of investments 
Licences, registrations and fees 
Motor vehicle and trailer expenses 
Postage 
Printing and stationery 
Rates and water charges 
Repairs and maintenance - buildings 
Repairs and maintenance - plant and equipment 
Staff and officials amenities 
Sundry expenses 
Superannuation 
Telephone 
Training and travel expenses 
Trophies, medals and presentations 
Uniforms 
Movement in employee provisions 
Wages and salaries
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 
Current year surplus / (deficit) before income tax
Income tax expense
Net current year surplus / (deficit) Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
Surplus / (deficit) attributable to members of the entity
Total comprehensive income attributable to members of the entity

Note

 26,969 (33,830)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

2024 

 15,682 
832 

54,769 
106,055 

673 
- 

32,688 
23,823 
20,682 

168 
1,362 

(2,000)
 495 

26,102 
27,773 

305 
2,888 
1,391 

880 
314,568 

 895
5,554
5,000

33
19,001
53,540
67,977

1,294
7,256
2,165

21,447
600

4,945
836

(259)
  18 
214
 32 
311

1,417
451

3,835
2,595
2,466
6,198

233
 - 

3,811
581

(22,528)
97,684

287,599
26,969

 -
26,969

 - 
-

 26,969 

2023 

 17,703 
14,294 

- 
112,170 

1,529 
3,379 

37,844 
22,978 

2,069 
89 

- 
- 

21,258 
25,193 
26,200 

2,203 
2,156 

815 
173 

290,052 

 807
1,265
5,000

92
17,005
(1,690)
74,704

5,636
9,091
2,258

30,708
- 

5,130
1,092
5,770
1,248

211
298

2,200
2,674
2,102
5,506
1,638 

-
12,413

181 
8,013
7,204
2,289
2,603

118,434
323,882
(33,830)

-
(33,830)

- 
-

(33,830)

SURF LIFE SAVING QUEENSLAND SUNSHINE COAST BRANCH INC
ABN: 82 260 488 697

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 30 APRIL 2024
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ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Other current assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Financial assets
Property, plant and equipment
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Employee provisions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Employee provisions
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Retained surplus
TOTAL EQUITY

Note

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

1
2
3
4

5
6

7
8

8

2024
$

 126,637
-

780
11,507

138,923 

 73,188
67,177

140,365
279,288 

 4,088
-

4,088 

-
-

4,088
275,200 

 275,200
275,200 

2023
$

 72,928
66,171

139,099
284,894 

 248,767
248,767 

 134,895
7,116
1,279
2,506

145,796 

 9,338
9,338

36,127
248,767 

 13,599
13,190
26,789 

SURF LIFE SAVING QUEENSLAND SUNSHINE COAST BRANCH
INC ABN: 82 260 488 697 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 APRIL 2024
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Balance at 1 May 2022 Comprehensive
Income
Surplus for the year attributable to owners of the
entity
Historical adjustment
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the entity
Balance at 30 April 2023
Balance at 1 May 2023
Comprehensive Income
Surplus for the year attributable to owners of the
entity
Historical adjustment
Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 30 April 2024

Note

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Retained
Surplus

$

- 

- 
- 
- 

-
-
- 

Revaluation 
Surplus

$
 282,843 

(33,830)
(246)
(246)

(34,076)
 248,767 
248,767 

 26,969
(536)
(536)

26,433
275,200 

Financial
Assets 

Reserve
$

- 

- 
- 
- 

-
-
- 

Total

$
 282,843 

(33,830)
(246)
(246)

(34,076)
 248,767 
248,767 

 26,969
(536)
(536)

26,433
275,200 

SURF LIFE SAVING QUEENSLAND SUNSHINE COAST BRANCH INC ABN: 82
260 488 697 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED

30 APRIL 2024
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CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liabilities
Increase in finance lease commitments
Net cash used in financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Commonwealth, state and local government grants
Receipts from donations, bequests and raffles
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Distributions received
Net cash generated from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payment for property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Note

Net increase in cash held
Cash on hand at beginning of the financial year
Cash on hand at end of the financial year

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

2024
$

-
307,977

(312,420)
168

4,279
4 

- 
(8,263)
(8,263)

-
-
- 

(8,258)
134,895
126,637 

2023
$

-
278,226

(301,804)
89

2,971
(20,518)

- 
(16,826)
(16,826)

-
-
- 

(37,344)
172,239
134,895 

SURF LIFE SAVING QUEENSLAND SUNSHINE COAST BRANCH INC
ABN: 82 260 488 697 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 30 APRIL 2024
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(c)

(b) Inventories
Inventories held for sale are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated, less, where applicable, accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Capital grant
When the Entity receives a capital grant, it recognises a liability for the excess of the initial carrying amount of the financial asset
received over any related amounts (being contributions by owners, lease liability, financial instruments, provisions) recognised
under other Australian Accounting Standards.

The Entity recognises income in profit or loss when or as the Entity satisfies its obligations under terms of the grant. 

Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax.

Accounting Policies

(a) Revenue
Operating Grants, Donations and Bequests 
When the entity receives operating grant funding, donations or bequests, it assesses whether the contract is enforceable and has
sufficiently specific performance obligations in accordance to AASB 15.

When both these conditions are satisfied, the Entity:

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards – Simplified Disclosures of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Australian Charities and Not-for- profits
Commission Act 2012. The entity is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in financial statements 
containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. Compliance with Australian Accounting 
Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards. Material 
accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are presented below and have been consistently applied 
unless otherwise stated. The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accrual basis and are

based on historical 
costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial 
liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial statements are in Australian Dollars and have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

The financial statements cover Surf Life Saving Queensland Sunshine Coast Branch Inc as an individual entity, incorporated and
domiciled in Australia. Surf Life Saving Queensland Sunshine Coast Branch Inc is a company limited by guarantee, and a registered
charity with the Australian Charities and Not-for-profitts Commission. 

—identifies each performance obligation relating to the grant;
—recognises a contract liability for its obligations under the agreement; and
—recognises revenue as it satisfies its performance obligations.

Where the contract is not enforceable or does not have sufficiently specific performance obligations, the Entity:
—recognises the asset received in accordance with the recognition requirements of other applicable accounting standards 

(for example AASB 9. AASB 16, AASB 116 and AASB 138);
—recognises related amounts (being contributions by owners, lease liability, financial instruments, provisions); and
—recognises income immediately in profit or loss as the difference between the initial carrying amount of the asset and the 

related amount.

SURF LIFE SAVING QUEENSLAND SUNSHINE COAST BRANCH INC ABN: 82 260
488 697 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30

APRIL 2024
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SURF LIFE SAVING QUEENSLAND SUNSHINE COAST BRANCH INC ABN: 82 260
488 697 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30

APRIL 2024

(f)

(e)

(d)

Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, including buildings and plant and equipment but excluding freehold land, is
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the asset's useful life to the entity commencing from the time the asset is held ready for
use. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful
lives of the improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are: 

Class of Fixed Asset
Buildings
Motor vehicles
Plant and equipment

Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment are measured on a cost basis and are therefore carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment is greater than the estimated
recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to the estimated recoverable amount and impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss. A formal assessment of recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are
present (refer to Note 1(e) for details of impairment).

Plant and equipment that have been contributed at no cost, or for nominal cost, are valued and recognised at the fair value of the 
asset at the date it is acquired.

Impairment of Assets
At the end of each reporting period, the entity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying
amount. Any excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its recoverable amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Instruments
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions to the
instrument. For financial assets, this is the date that the entity commits itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade
date accounting is adopted).

Financial instruments (except for trade receivables) are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the 
instrument is classified as “at fair value through profit or loss”, in which case transaction costs are expensed to profit or loss 
immediately. Where available, quoted prices in an active market are used to determine fair value. In other circumstances, 
valuation techniques are adopted.

Employee Benefits Short-term employee benefits
Provision is made for the company’s obligation for short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee benefits are benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in
which the employees render the related service, including wages, salaries and sick leave. Short-term employee benefits are
measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when the obligation is settled.

The company’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, are recognised as part of current trade and other 
payables in the statement of financial position.

Other long-term employee benefits
The entity classifies employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitlements as other long-term employee benefits as they are
not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the
related service. Provision is made for the company’s obligation for other long-term employee benefits, which are measured at the
present value of the expected future payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future
wage and salary levels, durations of service and employee departures, and are discounted at rates determined by reference to market
yields at the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the
obligations. Upon the remeasurement of obligations for other long-term employee benefits, the net change in the obligation is
recognised in profit or loss classified under employee benefits expense.

Depreciation Rate
5%

25%
20-40%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains or losses are 
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Gains are not classified as revenue. When revalued assets are sold, 
amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.
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(i)

(j)

(l)

(k)

(g)

(h)

Note 1

Note 2

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the entity has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured. Provisions recognised represent the
best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of reporting period.
Comparative Figures
When required by Accounting Standards comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the
current financial year.

Income Tax
No provision for income tax has been raised as the entity is exempt from income tax under Div 50 of the 
Act 1997.

Trade and Other Debtors
Trade and other debtors include amounts due from members as well as amounts receivable from customers for goods sold.

Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets. All 
other receivables are classified as non-current assets.
Accounts receivable are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method, less any provision for impairment. Refer to Note 1(e) for further discussion on the determination of impairment 
losses.
Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). 

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable 
from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities 
which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash flows included in receipts from customers or 
payments to suppliers.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in
current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Trade and Other Receivables

(m)Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Note

CURRENT
Westpac Community Solutions Account
Westpac Business Cash Reserve
Petty Cash

CURRENT
Trade receivables
Total current accounts receivable and other debtors

2024
$

2024
$

 114,816
11,697

124
126,637 

-
- 

The company’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current liabilities in its statement of financial
position, except where the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period, in which case the obligations are presented as current liabilities.

The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial statements based on historical knowledge and
best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends
and economic data, obtained both externally and within the company.

2023
$

 123,243
11,529

123
134,895 

2023
$

 7,116
7,116 

Income Tax Assessment 
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CURRENT
At cost:
Inventory

Prepayments

CURRENT
Trade payables
Other current payables
GST payable
PAYG payable
Superannuation payable

Buildings:
At cost
(Accumulated depreciation)

Motor Vehicles
At cost
(Accumulated depreciation)

Plant and Equipment
At cost
(Accumulated depreciation)

Ramp and Driveway
At cost
(Accumulated depreciation)

Total property, plant and equipment

NON-CURRENT
Betashares Legg Mason Australian Bond Fund
MCP Master Income Trust
Total non-current assets

2024
$

2024
$

 11,507
11,507 

2024
$

 40,618 
32,570 
73,188 

2024
$

 273,791
(270,681)

3,110 

2024
$

 1,081 
(136)

(7,332)
 7,130 
3,345 
4,088 

 780
780 

 10,091
(10,000)

91 

210,460 
(161,588)

 48,872 

37,483 
(22,379)
 15,104 

67,177 

2023
$

2023
$

 42,105 
30,823 
72,928 

 1,279
1,279 

2023
$
 2,506
2,506 

2023
$

 273,791
(270,214)

3,578 

 10,091
(9,970)

121 

202,198 
(155,327)

 46,871 

37,483 
(21,882)
 15,601 

66,171 

2023
$

 3,424 
857 

4,277 
1,092 
3,948 

13,599 

Note 3

Note 4

Note 5

Note 6

Note 7

Inventories

Other Assets

Financial Assets

Trade and Other Payables

Property, Plant and Equipment

Note

Note
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CURRENT
Provision for employee benefits: annual leave

NON-CURRENT
Provision for employee benefits: long service leave

The registered office and principal place of business of the entity is:
Surf Life Saving Queensland Sunshine Coast Branch Inc
Lot 695, Parkyn Parade
Mooloolaba QLD 4557

The directors are not aware of any significant events since the end of the reporting period.

2024
$

-
- 

- 
- 
- 

The non-current portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have not yet vested in
relation to those employees who have not yet completed the required period of service. 

Balance is reduced to NIL as no employees at year end. Final pay run in Sept-23. All employees paid by SLSQ - Head Office. 

There were no contingent assets or liabilities identified by the entity as having to be reported at the date of prepartion of this report. 

Other related parties include close family members of key management personnel and entities that are controlled or jointly controlled
by those key management personnel individually or collectively with their close family members.

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable than those available to 
other parties unless otherwise stated.

Employee provisions represent amounts accrued for annual leave and long service leave.

The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitlements and the amounts accrued for 
long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed the required period of service. Based on past 
experience, the entity does not expect the full amount of annual leave or long service leave balances classified as current liabilities to 
be settled within the next 12 months. However, these amounts must be classified as current liabilities since the entity does not have 
an unconditional right to defer the settlement of these amounts in the event employees wish to use their leave entitlement.

2023
$

 13,190 
13,190 

9,338 
9,338 

22,528 

Note 8

Note 9

Note 10

Note 11

Note 12

Provisions

Entity Details

Related Parties

Provision for employee benefits

Events After the Reporting Period

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
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Director

Director

Dated this

In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Surf Life Saving Queensland Sunshine Coast Branch Inc, the
directors of the entity declare that:
1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 2 to 10, are in accordance with the Australian 

Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and:

(a)

(b)

comply with Australian Accounting Standards - Simplified Disclosures applicable to the entity; and 

give a true and fair view of the financial position of the registered entity as at 30 April 2024 and of its 
performance for the year ended on that date.

2. In the directors' opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the registered entity will be able to pay 
its debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is signed in accordance with subs 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Regulation 2013.
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In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the registered entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the registered entity or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report has been
prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Registered Entity's financial reporting responsibilities under the Australian Charities and
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012. As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the
Registered Entity in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the ACNC Act, the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the registered entity are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards - AASB 1060 General Purpose Financial Statements - Simplified Disclosures
for For-Profit and Not-for-Profit Tier 2 Entities and the ACNC Act and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

The directors of the Registered Entity are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view and 
have determined that the basis of preparation described in Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate to meet the requirements 
of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and is appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The 
directors’ responsibility also includes such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of a 
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

We have audited the financial report of Surf Life Saving Queensland Sunshine Coast Branch Inc (the registered entity), which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 April 2024, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and the directors' declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the registered entity is in accordance with Division 60 of the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 (the ACNC Act), including:

i. giving a true and fair view of the Registered Entity’s financial position as at 30 April 2024 and of its financial 
performance for the year then ended; and
complying with Australian Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1 – AASB 1060 General Purpose 
Financial Statements - Simplified Disclosures for For-Profit and Not-for-Profit Tier 2 Entities and Division 60 of the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013.

ii.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting

SURF LIFE SAVING QUEENSLAND SUNSHINE COAST BRANCH
INC ABN: 82 260 488 697 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF SURF LIFE SAVING QUEENSLAND SUNSHINE

COAST BRANCH INC
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Auditor's name and signature:

Diana Taylor
Registered Company Auditor
Unit 9, Serenity Waters
123 Brisbane Road
Mooloolaba QLD 4557
19th

Address:

Dated this day of June 2024

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Registered Entity’s 
internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the directors. 
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the registered entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the registered entity to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether 
the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

—

—

—

—

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Thank you to all 
13, 909 

members of the Sunshine
Coast Branch for your

dedication to Surf Life Saving
throughout the 2023/24

season!

We look forward to seeing you back
on the beach for the 2024/25

season. 


